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Dear colleagues, customers and partners,

2016 was undoubtedly a year of challenges, changes and major works. Seeking to strengthen our positions
in the highly dynamic sector of postal services, we have taken many new and significant steps in the directions
important to us, and today we are delighted with the results of these decisions.

Regardless of electronic channels, currently undergoing rapid growth, and decreasing demand of traditional
postal services caused by it, in 2016 Lithuania Post earned net profit amounting to EUR 993,000 and reduced
its operating expenses 17.0 %. These figures are not only data, there are actions and achievements behind
them. The operational strategy and five renewed strategic points approved by the corporate group of
Lithuania Post at the end of the last year will pave the way we are going to take to make these results even
more attractive.

According to global forecasts the market share taken by e-trading will constantly grow, that is why one of the
strategic directions set by the corporate group is to increase its market share in growing markets, and it will
guarantee leading positions in the market. Constantly changing market needs and expectations of our
customers require continuous development and new ways how services could be made simpler, more
reliable and accessible.

Today, our income, received from e-trading, constitutes the major share of the received income. In 2016, a
new service was proposed to our business customers – e-self service. Using it customers may take care of
dispatch of parcels by themselves. More than 5,000 registered customers use self service, almost 100,000
various parcels per month are dispatched. Hence, these and other factor show that we are on the right road.

Having regard to the rapidly growing volume of international postal correspondence and the objective to
ensure high-quality postal parcel tracking service and seeking that both business entities engaged in
electronic trading, and residents may receive detailed information about parcel shipment progress, we have
joined the multilateral agreement PRIME. Following the agreement our customers may track their parcels in
the most countries of the world, and they receive a notice that their parcel has reached a post office in the
manner most acceptable to them.

Rapidly changing expectations and needs of customers and increasing competition in the market of postal
services require developments and new ways how postal services may be made more accessible and more
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convenient to our customers. After having assessed that customers residing in small towns and rural areas
want more accessible services rendered by Lithuania Post, in 2016, we presented the aspiration to improve
accessibility of postal services to the public and work conditions of employees in rural areas. We constantly
strive that people living even in the outermost corners of the country can call a postman and get necessary
services.

Our activities were highly appreciated throughout Lithuania. The Lithuanian Confederation of Industrialists
has awarded Lithuania Post as „Successfully Operating Company 2016“. In addition, this year the company
has triumphed in National Business Awards „Service of the Year 2016“ given to companies creating innovative
and competitive services. These and other awards show that we are flexible, we are able to adapt to the
times in which we live and we strive to work effectively.

I am sure that the success of Lithuania Post is determined by highly professional, strong and loyal employees
who share main values, objectives and team work. Employees are our greatest asset, that is why we continue
to invest in them seeking to ensure not only suitable work conditions, but also - the most important - their
satisfaction with work and professional activities.

Under the new operating strategy of the corporate group of Lithuania Post, we are ready to take further
steps in order to increase the market share taken not only in Lithuania, but also in the Baltic States. I have no
doubt that the mastery of our activities, constant search for modern solutions and professional team work
will guarantee our success in 2017, as well.

CEO of Lietuvos paštas, AB
Lina Minderienė
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GENERAL INFORMATION
Reference Period
The year ending on 31 December 2016.
The financial statements of Lietuvos Paštas, AB as of 31 December 2016 have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union.
Details
Name
Legal domicile
Telephone
Fax
E-mail
Website address
Legal status
Term of activity
Company code
VAT payer's code
Data processor of legal entities
Registration date
Key activities

Public Limited Company Lietuvos Paštas (hereinafter referred
to as Lithuania Post or the Company)
J. Jasinskio St 16, 03500 Vilnius
8 700 55 400
(8 5) 216 3204
info@post.lt
www.lietuvospastas.lt
Public limited company, private legal entity of limited civil
liability
Open-ended
121215587
LT212155811
State Enterprise Centre of Registers
14 September 2009
Postal, financial and other services

The mission of Lithuania Post is to save time of our customers by effectively rendering services.
The vision of Lithuania Post is to become the most efficient post in the region of Nordic and Baltic countries.
By implementing the vision and the mission, Lithuania Post follows the following values in its activities:
 simplicity;
 reliability;
 accessibility.
By implementing its strategy the company seeks to create value for the shareholder and the public.
Seeking to achieve that result, five strategical directions were set towards which activities are oriented:
 improvement of customer service,
 retention of income from shrinking markets,
 increasing market share in growing markets,
 improvement of operating efficiency,
 strengthening of organisational culture.

Major Events of the Accounting Period
From 1 January 2016 the company started applying a new discount system which is based on the number of
consignments sent and the points of delivery. The new discount system shall be applicable to business clients
who have contracts with Lithuania Post sending more than 250 large items of correspondence or from 1
thousand small items of correspondence per month. The price of delivery services will be subject to the
number of dispatched consignments and the “geography”, i.e. the delivery point. While giving discounts to
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business clients 3 geographical territories of consignment delivery will be taken into account: cities, district
centres and towns, small towns and rural areas.
Using the e-delivery system national authorities have dispatched first consignments transferred
electronically and delivered by ordinary registered mail. The first hybrid consignments dispatched through
the e-delivery system are delivered to more than 100,000 Sodra clients. The e-delivery system has been
introduced during implementation of the project „Development of Delivery System of Electronic Messages
and Electronic Documents to Natural and Legal Persons“, implemented by the Ministry of Transport and
Communications together with the project partner Lietuvos paštas, AB. The owner of the e-delivery system
– the Ministry of Transport and Communications, the manager of the system – the Information Society
Development Committee. Lietuvos paštas, AB is the operator of the e-delivery system.
On 27 July 2016 a new organisational structure of Lithuania Post in compliance with strategic directions of
company activities took effect. The new structure reinforced individual functions of activities of our company:
development of products, management of processes, customer service, management of strategic projects
and personnel.
On 22 August 2016 by order of the Minister for Transport and Communications, Linas Sasnauskas was recalled
from the management board of the Public Limited Company Lietuvos Paštas, and Algimantas Variakojis was
elected to take the post of a member of the management board of the Public Limited Company Lietuvos
Paštas.
On 29 November 2016 Lithuania Post obtained a licence of an electronic money institution.
On 30 December 2016 by order of the Minister for Transport and Communications, Alfonsas Macaitis was
recalled from the management board of the Public Limited Company Lietuvos Paštas.
Major Events after the End of the Financial Year
There were no major events after the end of the financial year.
Awards
Petras Vileišis Nomination
The Lithuanian Confederation of Industrialists (LCI) has awarded the Petras Vileišis Nomination to the CEO
of the State-owned Public Limited Company Lietuvos Paštas Lina Minderienė. The manager of Lithuania Post
has earned the award for sustainable leadership in business, her personal contribution to improvement of
relevance of Lithuania Post fostering great traditions in this digital age and advanced innovations introduced
in the communications sector of the country. She was granted one of the greatest and prominent awards
granted by LCI - the P. Vileišis Nomination and the Gold Medal.
Successfully Operating Company
The Lithuanian Confederation of Industrialists has awarded Lithuania Post the title of "Successfully Operating
Company 2016". This year Lithuania Post has triumphed in National Business Awards „Service of the Year
2016“ given to companies creating innovative and competitive services which were initiated by the
Lithuanian Business Confederation.
Award „Communications Service of the Year“
Lithuania Post has been granted the award "Communications Service of the Year" for the implemented
campaign of renewal of boxes for incoming mail. The communications campaign during which Lithuanian
residents were invited to renew boxes for incoming mail received the title of the most effective low-budget
integrated communication campaign during the competition organised by the Lithuanian Public Relations
Specialists' Association and the Lithuanian Association of Public Relations Agencies "Impact Awards 2016".
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Socially Responsible Postal Operator
In the election of socially responsible postal operators organised by the European Postal Union "PostEurop"
uniting all postal operators of the Old Continent, Lithuania Post has won the first place award for the
implemented employee health promotion program „Lithuania Post – It's Me“.

Membership and International Cooperation
Since 1992, Lithuania has been one of 192 members of the Universal Postal Union (hereinafter referred to as
“UPU”) (www.upu.int), and Lithuania Post is a member of PostEurop, one of the regional unions of the UPU
(www.posteurop.org), and a member of the Baltic Postal Union. Also, the company has been participating in
the activities of working parties and committees of the Association of Postal Operators of Nordic Countries
(APONC).
Membership of Lithuania Post in international postal organisations opens possibilities for international
cooperation and plays an important role in networking, sharing best practices and state-of-the-art
achievements. All this gives us additional knowledge that is directly applied for the improvement of services
and makes relations with customers stronger.
Lithuania Post is a member of the Lithuanian Business Confederation (ICC Lithuania), a member of Investors’
Forum, as well as a non-associate member of the Lithuanian Confederation of Industrialists.
Authorised Capital of the Company
The authorised capital of Lithuania Post is EUR 32,791,579. It consists of 113,074,410 ordinary registered
shares with the par value of EUR 0.29 each.
The shares of the Company are intangible. They are recorded by way of entries in the securities account
which has been managed by the Public Limited Company Šiaulių Bankas since 21 December 2015.
Shareholders
All shares of the Company are owned by the State. Ensuring the rights in the Company reserved to the State
via the possessed shares, the State is represented by the Ministry of Transport and Communications of the
Republic of Lithuania.
No own shares had been obtained before the accounting period, and no own shares were obtained or
transferred during the year 2016. No shares of other companies were obtained or transferred.
Dividend Policy
Lithuania Post pays dividends in accordance with the procedures set forth in Resolution No. 20 of the
Government of the Republic of Lithuania of 14 January 1997 (edition of Resolution No. 359 dated 4 April
2012) governing the allocation of dividends for shares owned by the State.
In 2016 Lithuania Post made payments to its shareholders in the amount of EUR 692,000 in the form of
dividends, and in 2015 - EUR 187,000.
Management Bodies
Pursuant to the Articles of Association of Lithuania Post, the management bodies of the Company are as
follows: the General Meeting of Shareholders’, the Management Board, and the Chief Executive Officer. The
Supervisory Board is not formed in the Company. The Management Board of the Company represents the
shareholders and performs supervisory and control functions.
The decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders are equalled to the written decisions of the Ministry
of Transport and Communications of the Republic of Lithuania.
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The Management Board of the Company is a collegiate body consisting of five members elected for a term
of four years. The Management Board elects a Chair from its members. The members of the Management
Board are elected by the General Meeting of Shareholders.
The Management Board elects and recalls the CEO of the Company, sets his/her salary and other terms and
conditions of employment contract, approves job description, awards incentives and imposes penalties. The
CEO is the top manager of the Company. The CEO is the sole management body which arranges daily activities
of the Company based on the authorisations granted to him/her.

Members of the Management Board (data as of 31 December 2016)
Full name

Janina Laskauskienė

Irma Kirklytė

Algimantas Variakojis

Jonas Butautis

Beginning of the
term of office

Position held

Education

Head of Evaluation of Budget
Programmes Division under
Budget and State Property
Management Department of the
Ministry of Transport and
Communications
Head of Law Division of the
Ministry of Transport and
Communications
Executive partner of the Limited
Partnership "Verslo angelų
fondas I", legal entity code
302481770, registered
address: A. Goštauto St 40A,
01112 Vilnius
Chief Operation Officer of
Magnetic MRO AS, legal entity
code 10865988, registered
address: Väike-Sõjamäe 1A,
11415 Tallinn, Estonia

Faculty of Economics at
Vilnius University.
Studies in the fields of
finance and credits,
economist's
qualification.

13/01/2014

Faculty of Law at
Vilnius University.

13/01/2014

Vilnius University.
Economist

22/08/2016

Vytautas Magnus
University Master’s
Degree in Business
Administration

30/06/2014
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Management Team of the Company (data as of 31 December 2016)
Full name

Position held

Education

Lina Minderienė

CEO

Vilnius University, studies in the fields of finance
and credits Economist's qualification (1993)

Kęstutis Jaržemskas

Financial and Administration
Director

Kaunas University of Technology, Faculty of
Economics and Management. Master’s Degree in
Management and Business Administration.
Specialisation – Finance Management (2002).

Aurimas Čiagus

Marketing and Sales Manager

Faculty of Economics at Vilnius University. Business
Administration and Management (2006).

Algirdas Šimonis

Director of Postal Operations

Vilnius Gediminas Technical University. Master's
Qualification Degree in Transport Engineering
Sciences (2002)

Inga Dundulienė

Director of Postal Network

Vilnius University, studies in the fields of
accounting and audit Economist's qualification
(1993)

Aurika Pelanienė

Head of Accounting
Department, Chief
Accountant

Vilnius University, studies in the field of economic
informatics Economist's qualification (1990)

Wages allocated to the management of the Company in 2016 accounted for EUR 328,600 and in 2015 – EUR
271,500 .
Organisational Structure of the Company
A new organisational structure of Lithuania Post took effect on 27 July 2016. The present structure of the
Company consists of the CEO, directors of 4 divisions (Finance and Administration, Marketing and Sales,
Postal Operations, and Postal Network) and 20 departments, four of which, namely, Corporate Affairs,
Organisation Development, Strategy and Development, the Legal Department) are directly subordinate to
the CEO.
The Company has no branches or representative offices.
As of 31 December 2016 the Company had three affiliated companies: Baltic Post, UAB, Lietuvos pašto
finansinės paslaugos, UAB, LP mokėjimų sprendimai, UAB.
Basic Details on Affiliates
Lietuvos Pašto
Finansinės Paslaugos,
UAB
private limited liability
company
04 September 2007
301178592
Rodūnios kelias 9, Vilnius
(8 5) 236 1228

private limited liability
company
12 October 2012
302889099
J. Jasinskio St 16, Vilnius
(8 5) 274 4100

100

100

100

LP EXPRESS - activities of
couriers and self service
parcel terminals

Printing services

Consultancy services

Baltic Post, UAB
Legal status (company type)
Registration date
Company code
Legal domicile
Telephone
E-mail
Part of shares owned by
Lithuania Post, %
Type of core activities

private limited liability
company
09 September 2010
302544039
J. Jasinskio St 16A, Vilnius
(8 5) 205 2120
info@lpexpress.lt

LP Mokėjimų
Sprendimai, UAB
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Auditors

Ernst & Young Baltic, UAB, a subsidiary of the international organisation „Ernst & Young“ has performed an
audit of financial statements of the Company for the year 2016 consisting of the Statement of Financial
Position as of 31 December 2016 and the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in
Equity, the Cash Flow Statement and the Explanatory Notes for the year ended on that day.
The price provided for in the Agreement on Audit Services signed by the Company and Ernst & Young Baltic,
UAB on 12 August 2016 is EUR 33,100 (thirty three thousand one hundred) excluding VAT for auditing of
consolidated financial statements 2016 of Lithuania Post and its subsidiaries individually (Lietuvos pašto
finansinės paslaugos, UAB, LP mokėjimų sprendimai, UAB and Baltic Post, UAB).
„Ernst & Young“ is a global leader in the field of professional services which also is a reliable business advisor
of many leading business corporations and rapidly growing companies. Referring to its thorough knowledge
and accumulated experience in the field of entrepreneurship and industry, the international organisation
"Ernst & Young" may offer the widest range of services to companies which seek for growth, business risk
management, successful financial activities in the whole world. „Ernst & Young Baltic“ is one of the leading
providers of audit, tax and business consulting services in all Baltic countries (Lithuania, Latvia and Estonia).
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OVERVIEW OF ACTIVITIES
Note concerning financial data of 2015 provided in this annual report
The independent auditor's report on the financial statements for year 2015 contains a qualified opinion on
the recoverable value of non-current tangible and intangible assets of the Company and Company's
investment and the loan granted to the subsidiary company Baltic Post, UAB , that is why in 2016 the
management of the Company performed a retrospective assessment of recoverable value of non-current
tangible assets and investment and the loan granted to Baltic Post, UAB referring to their accounting value
as of 31 December 2015. The outcomes of the assessment of the investment and the loan granted were
presented by the Company as an adjustment of comparative information. Further information about
adjustments of comparative information is provided in Note No. 3 of the Financial Statements of the
Company for the year 2016.
2016

2015 (adjusted)

2014

172,969

172,338

182,290

17,156

16,994

17,732

2,095

2,225

5,920

5,649

5,678

5,897

4,522

4,682

4,737

67,192

Performance indicators
Number of services provided (thousands of items)
Number of UPS (Universal Postal Services)
(thousands of items)
Investments in tangible and intangible assets (EUR
thousand)

Number of employees
Number of employees in the beginning of the
period
Average conditional number of employees (full-time
jobs)

Financial indicators, EUR thousand
Operating revenue

68,712

61,648

Sales revenue

66,424

67,386

60,742

Operational profit
EBITDA
EBITDA, taking into account the adjustment of
expenses of 2015*
Profit before tax

875
2,431

-11,175
-9,693

631
2,595

1,527

2,558

1,035

-11,195

993

-10,688

233

Non-current assets
Current assets

37,925
33,984

35,654
28,160

48,288
44,634

Total assets

71,909

63,813

92,923

Equity

23,696

22,835

33,667

Return on equity (ROE)

4.3

-46.8

0.7

Return on assets (ROA)
Operating profit margin

1.4
1.3

-16.7
-16.3

0.3
1.0

EBITDA margin

3.7

-14.6

4.3

Pre-tax profit margin
Net profit margin

1.6
1.5

-16.6
-15.6

1.2
0.4

Debt ratio
Equity to assets ratio

0.7
0.3

0.6
0.4

0.6
0.4

Current liquidity ratio

0.8

1.0

0.8

Inventory turnover

21.5

39.6

41.9

Fixed (non-current) asset turnover

1.8

1.9

1.3

Trade receivables turnover

11.7

10.0

17.6

Net profit

739

Profitability ratios (%)

Financial ratios

Asset turnover ratio

* taking into account the assessment of reduction of the value of fixed tangible assets and investment and the loan to Baltic Post,
UAB as of 31 December 2015.
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In 2016, Lithuania Post earned net profit amounting to EUR 993,000. In 2015, the Company incurred loss of
EUR 10,688,000.
In 2016, the earnings of the Company before taxes, interest and depreciation (EBITDA) amounted to EUR
2,431,000.
Revenue
In 2016, sales revenue of the Company amounted to EUR 66,424,000, i.e. in comparison to the sales revenue
in 2015 amounting to EUR 67,386,000 it decreased 1.4 %.
2016

2015

Change, %

Postal services

39,001

39,264

-0.7

Universal

20,409

18,691

9.2

Other postal

18,592

20,573

-9.6

Courier services

1,841

1,626

13.2

Financial services
Other services

11,618
13,965

11,799
14,697

-1.5
-5.0

Sales revenue, EUR thousand:

66,424

67,386

-1.4

The major share of the sales revenue was received from postal services. In 2016, postal services accounted
for 58.7 %, and a year before - 58.3 % of sales revenue.
Compared to 2015, in 2016 the revenue from postal services decreased 0.7 % due to reduction in the number
of international correspondence.
The decrease in revenue was determined by reduction in the number of international correspondence
delivered from China to European countries following the cooperation agreement concluded with the
international logistic and transport company "CLAVY".
In 2016, the amount of income received by Lithuania Post from courier services was 13.2 % higher than a
year ago due to additional income from the services rendered to the Central Electoral Commission of the
Republic of Lithuania during elections to the Seimas of the Republic of Lithuania.
In 2016, the amount of revenue from financial services was 1.5 % lower than in 2015 due to reduction of
income from consumer credit intermediation of 34.8 %. In 2016, revenue from other financial services
increased as follows: from delivery of pensions – 6.6 %, acceptance of contributions – 3.1 %, money
remittance – 21.3 %.
Income from other services consisting of subscription of periodicals, non-targeted advertisements, additional
services, retail and commission trade, etc. dropped by 5.0 % compared to 2015. This has been caused by
additional postal services, related to reduction of the number of deliveries of correspondence from China to
European countries following the cooperation agreement concluded with international logistic and transport
company „CLEVY“.
ServicesIn 2016, Lithuania Post rendered 172,969,000 services or by 0.4 % more than in 2015.
Postal services
Universal
Other postal
Courier services
Financial services
Other services
In total, thousand items

2016
54,368
17,156
37,212
583
21,176
96,841

2015
59,778
16,994
42,784
534
22,317
89,708

172,969

172,338

Change, %
-9.1
1
-13
9.3
-5.1
8
0.4
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In 2016, the number of rendered universal postal services (UPS) was by 1.0 % higher due to the increased
number of domestic and international dispatches of consignments up to 2 kilo.
In 2016, the number of other postal services dropped by 13.0 % compared to 2015, because the number of
international consignments decreased by 81.0 %. The reduced number of consignments was influenced by
the reduced flow of international dispatches of correspondence delivered from China to European countries
following the cooperation agreement concluded with Chinese companies.
The number of courier services of Lithuania Post when consignments are delivered in person upon signed
acknowledgement (by a courier) increased by 9.3 % in 2016. These services are developed by the subsidiary
company Baltic Post, UAB.
In 2016, the number of rendered financial services decreased by 5.1 % due to the reduced volume of these
services: 8.0 % - deliveries of pensions, 4.3 % – acceptance and administration of payments, 48.1 % –
consumer credit intermediation. Among financial services the number of money remittance services
increased by 19.6 % compared to 2015. The flow of local money remittances which mostly are equivalent to
bank payment orders, and the flow of money remittances from Lithuania to foreign countries has increased.
Compared to the data of 2015, the number of other services rendered increased by 8.0 % due to the growth
of non-targeted advertisements.
Operating Expenses
In 2016, operating expenses amounted to EUR 66,317,000, and compared to the year 2015, they decreased
by 17.0 %.
The major share of operating expenses, namely 61.3 %, accounted for the expenses related to the staff and
in 2016 they were by 10.9 % higher than in 2015 and amounted to EUR 40,669,000. The increase of employeerelated expenses was determined by the increase in minimal monthly wage (from 1 July 2015, from 1 January
2016 and 1 July 2016), some changes in wages which were provided for in the collective employment
contract and came into force from 1 April 2015.
In 2016, the expenses of international delivery of postal items and payments with foreign post offices
amounted to EUR 10,902,000, or by 14.0 % lower compared to 2015. The decrease of these expenses was
determined by the decrease in international consignments by 92.1 % delivered following the cooperation
agreement with Chinese company "CLEVY".
In 2016, depreciation costs of non-current assets were by 2.8 % lower compared to 2015 and amounted to
EUR 1,622,000.
Other expenses were 75.3 % lower than in the previous year. This change resulted from significantly lower
other expenses in 2015 affected by the impairment of non-current tangible assets and investment and the
loan to Baltic Post, UAB as of 31 December 2015.
Performance Results
In 2016 EBITDA of Lithuania Post (earnings before taxes, interest, depreciation and amortisation) amounted
to EUR 2,431,000. In 2015, EBITDA was negative and amounted to EUR 9,693,000. In 2016 the EBITDA margin
of the Company was 3.7 % (in 2015 - 14.6 %).
Over the year 2016 the Company earned net profits amounting to EUR 993,000, and in 2015 it incurred net
losses amounting to EUR 10,688,000.
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Balance Sheet
In 2016, the assets of Lithuania Post decreased by 12.7 % and amounted to EUR 71,909,000 .
In 2016, non-current assets accounted for 52.7 %, i.e. it increased by 6.4 % in a year.
Current assets accounted for 47.3 %, i.e. it increased by 20.7 % in a year due to advance payments for services
and accumulated income of international payments.
In 2016, equity increased by 1.1 %, and amounted to EUR 23,095,000.
Late December 2016, the Company’s liabilities were 18.6 % higher than a year ago due to the increase of
debts to suppliers and received advance payments. Financial debts of the Company per annum decreased by
10.2 %.
Investments
In 2016, Lithuania Post’s investments into non-current tangible and intangible assets amounted to EUR
2,095,000.
The Company acquired non-current tangible assets for EUR 775,000. Investments were intended to improve
premises used for customer service and staff’s work places in the Mail Sorting Department, to prepare the
concept of POS (point of sale), to acquire IT equipment.
EUR 1,320,000 were invested into intangible assets. In 2016 advance payments amounting to EUR 920,000
were accounted as non-tangible assets.
Regulation
The provision of postal services is governed by the Postal Law of the Republic of Lithuania which gives legal
grounds for postal activities, sets relations between the providers of postal services and their users, defines
rights and obligations as well as liabilities and compensation for damage.
The Postal Law obliges the provider of universal postal services to guarantee continuous rendering of the
UPS in the territory of the Republic of Lithuania to all users under equal conditions not less than 5 working
days per week.
The Government of the Republic of Lithuania obliged Lithuania Post to provide the UPS in the entire territory
of the Republic of Lithuania for 7 years. Law No. XI-2379 (Official Gazette, 2012, No. 135-6867) dated
08/11/2012 stipulates that the Public Limited Company Lietuvos Paštas shall be the provider of the universal
postal services until 31 December 2019. The universal postal service means postal services meeting the
requirements set out in legal acts that must be provided in the whole territory of the Republic of Lithuania
for affordable price to everyone wishing to receive such services.
The Communications Regulatory Authority approves the maximum rates of the UPS on the basis of weight
steps of postal items. In accordance with the approved maximum allowable UPS rates, the CEO of Lithuania
Post approved the rates for universal and other postal services by of his/her orders.
Rates applicable to the universal postal services must be reasoned by the expenses of the provided UPS,
however, they must be accessible to all users of postal services, also be transparent and non-discriminatory.
In the event where the Communications Regulatory Authority fixes the maximum USP rates which are lower
than the expenses for postal services, the difference between such expenses and rates must be paid from
the funds of the state budget as provided for in the procedure established by the Government.
Despite the fact that delivery of periodicals to subscribers in rural areas is not attributed to the UPS, Lithuania
Post, designated by the Government to provide the UPS, has an obligation to deliver periodicals to
subscribers in rural areas. The UPS provider will have to justify the rates applied for these services referring
to its expenses, and the bookkeeping of these services will have to be conducted in accordance with the basic
expense accounting handling principles established by the Communications Regulatory Authority as well as
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in pursuance of the requirements of the expense accounting system and other expense accounting system
related requirements.
In the case where the Government, taking into account the earlier adopted criteria, sets the tariffs for the
delivery of periodicals to subscribers in rural areas, and those tariffs are lower than the costs incurred while
providing these services, the difference between the costs and the tariffs will be covered in the manner set
forth by the Government from the funds earmarked in the State budget.
On 29 November 2016, the Company received a licence of an electronic money institution. The licence grants
Lithuania Post the right to:
emit electronic money;
distribute and redeem electronic money;
provide services enabling to deposit cash into payment accounts and to perform other operations related to
handling of payment accounts;
provide services enabling to withdraw cash from payment accounts and to perform other operations related
to handling of payment accounts;
perform payment operations including transfer of funds to a payment account opened by the user’s provider
of payment services, or account opened at the institution of another payment services provider: performance
of direct debit operations including single direct debit transfers, performance of payment operations using
payment cards or similar means and (or) execution of credit transfers, including periodical transfers;
issue and (or) admit payment means;
provide the service of money remittance.
Infrastructure
Fulfilling the requirements for the arrangement of UPS provision points, Lithuania Post must maintain a
specific network of post offices. As stipulated in Order No. 3-46 of the Minister for Transport and
Communications of 25 January 2013 “On the Approval of Characteristics of Public Post Network of the
Provider of Universal Postal Services”, rural residential areas in the territory of one township must have not
less than one point for the provision of UPS or a workplace intended for the agents of the UPS provider.
On 31 December 2016, Lithuania Post had a UPS network with 776 points of universal postal service (UPS)
provision, consisting of: 627 stationary post offices (190 – in towns and cities and 437 – in rural areas), 21
post subdivisions (19 – in towns and cities, 3 – in rural areas), 128 UPS provision points were located in rural
areas, where postal services were provided by 26 mobile post offices.
In the year 2016, the number of UPS points decreased by 17 (pcs.) - 2 in towns and cities, and 15 in rural
residential areas:
- 10 stationary UPS points were closed, whereof 2 were reorganised; 6 mobile UPS points (stops) and 3 post
subdivisions.
On 31 December 2016, the excessive (with more than one post office in a township) number of post offices
in rural areas accounted for 64 post offices, 33 from which are computerised.
On 31 December 2016, the Company's network of PayPost providing financial services was comprised of 163
units. PayPost units provide traditional financial services, such as payment of taxes, money transfers and
receipt, issuance of consumer credits, and also insurance services, open LP payment accounts, conduct sale
of tickets to cultural and sports events.
The subsidiary Baltic Post, UAB, operates 102 parcel self-service terminals LP EXPRESS in 45 towns of
Lithuania. LP EXPRESS is the largest network of self-service terminals operating in Lithuania 24/7, and located
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in the places where the biggest client flows are recorded (shopping centres, petrol stations, etc.). Using LP
EXPRESS terminals parcels may be dispatched not only in Lithuania, but also other European countries.
Core services of the Company
Postal services (universal postal service, other postal services);
Courier (parcels, other courier dispatches, delivered in person upon signed acknowledgement (via courier);
Financial intermediation (acceptance of contributions and charges, money remittances, payment of
pensions and allowances, intermediation in granting consumer credits, payment accounts);
Retail trade (sale of goods on-line and using the postal network).

Markets
According to the report data provided by the Communications Regulatory Authority (hereinafter referred to
as the CRA”), on 31 December 2016, as many as 67 economic entities were operating in the postal services’
market in total; of them 52 entities carried out real activities.
Based on the CRA data, in 2016 Q4, the common postal services market increased by 7.8%, in terms of
income, as compared to 2015, i.e. from EUR 34.8 to 37.5 million.
In 2016 Q4 in terms of income received Lietuvos Paštas, AB occupied the major share of the common market
of postal services, namely, 40.1 % Meanwhile, in 2016 Q4 in terms of income received from consignments
dispatched via the postal network, Lietuvos Paštas, AB occupied the major share of the market namely, 96.4
%.
Market share of Lithuania Post in terms of income, %
From sending items via postal network
From in-person delivery services (via courier)
Market share in the common market of postal
services

2016 Q4
96.4
3.7

2015 Q4
93.0
2.3

40.1

42.8

On 1 January 2016 the Public List of Electronic Money Institutions contained 6 registered electronic money
institutions, 3 of them operated only in the Republic of Lithuania (had a licence for limited activities valid only
in the Republic of Lithuania and determining that the average of unpaid electronic money must not exceed
EUR 900,000 per month). On 31 December 2016 the Public List of Electronic Money Institutions contained 12
registered electronic money institutions.
According to the data of the Bank of Lithuania, on 31 December 2015, the Public List of Consumer Credit
Providers included 66 entities (other than credit institutions) entitled to grant consumer credits. 37
companies (other than credit institutions), included into the Public List of Consumer Credit Providers in 2015,
of the total 66 have granted credits.
Company’s Customers and their Main Groups
Lithuania Post provides services both to ordinary residents and to different companies and organisations,
and cooperates with foreign postal institutions.
Customers of Lithuania Post are categorised into two large segments: customers using postal services at the
postal counter and business customers having contractual relations with the company, i.e. global craftsmen,
companies involved in electronic trade and companies sending information to residents.
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Service Quality
To render UPS Lithuania Post must comply with the established service quality guidelines. The main UPS
quality requirement is to deliver postal correspondence items from the sender to the addressee within the
time limits set. The indicator of fulfilment of the requirement is the percentage of delivered postal parcels
within the time limits set.
Quality requirements for the USP (standards) are established in the Description of Quality Requirements for
the Universal Postal Services for Domestic Correspondence Items approved by Order No. 3-128 of the
Minister for Transport and Communication of February 2013 which are established taking into account the
time of correspondence delivery from the sender to the addressee according to the formula D + n (D - the
date of dispatch of the postal correspondence, n - the number of working days from the dispatch to the
delivery). Following the Postal Law the Communications Regulatory Authority supervises fulfilment of the
quality requirements applicable to UPS.
Description (purpose)
Indicators of Dispatch and Delivery of Domestic Priority
Postal Correspondence Items in Lithuania, %

The target indicator value

Actual data of 2016

D + 1 = 85 %

83.1 %

D + 3 = 97 %

98.6 %

In 2016, the target number of dispatches and deliveries of domestic priority postal correspondence items in
Lithuania - D + 1 = 85 % has been not reached. The key reasons for it were employee turnover, errors of
interim staff and late deliveries.
The Company conducts annual service quality surveys which are carried out by an independent quality
assurance review organisation. The methodology of verification of service quality is based on the European
standards and is used in all European countries.
Lithuania Post takes an active part in those activities of the Universal Postal Union, the Association of
European Public Postal Operators PostEurop, and the Committee for the Improvement of Service Quality
which are aimed at establishing and implementing quality standards for the provision of postal services. The
Company has implemented the European standard LST EN 14012 "Postal Services. Quality of Service.
Complaints handling Principles", as well as the centralized complaints registration system in line with the
requirements of this standard.
Lithuania Post enhances its cooperation with foreign postal operators so as to ensure that the recipients will
receive better-quality delivery services.
Employees
In 2016, the number of employees of Lithuania Post decreased by 29 people - from 5,678 to 5,649. More
than half of employees are part-time employed as the work load in rural areas and the change of seasons
cannot ensure full-time jobs. This trend continued in 2016, as well.
In 2016, the average conditional number of employees of the Company (recalculated to full-time jobs when
employees work during the whole month) reduced by 160 people - from 4,682 to 4,522 - compared to the
data of the last year. The biggest reduction of the number of employees was in the Postal Network Division
due to extension of activities related to delivery of postal parcels with cars.
Annual Gross Wage Fund and Generalised Average Monthly Wages according to positions held
In 2016, wages with social contributions accounted for 59.7 % of operating expenses.
The wages and social insurance required EUR 39,588,000, or increased by 10.9 % compared to 2015.
In 2016, compared to 2015 the average wage of employees increased by 8.8 %, from EUR 485 to 528.
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Seq.
No.
1

Position or group of positions

2016

2015

CEO

4,397

3,785

2

Top level management

2,974

2,682

3

Other manager-level administrative employees

1,463

1,341

4

Other administrative professionals

881

815

5

Post office manager

542

519

6

Customer service professional

487

467

7

Data input operator, operator

440

396

8

Sorting staff

479

425

9

Mail escort staff, driver in mail escort

570

552

10

Postman, postman driving a car

408

370

11

Deliverer of pensions

413

335

12

General servants and other workers

398

341

Breakdown of employees of Lithuania Post based on education
In 2016, the number of employees with university-degree increased. This might have been determined by
the fact that the Company’s employees were studying in higher education institutions or colleges, and by the
employee turnover.

Education

University degree

2016
Number of
employees
1,268

2015
Comparative
part, %
22.4%

Number of
employees
1,253

Change per year
Comparative
part, %
21.9%

Employees

%

15

1.2%

Post-secondary

2,190

38.6%

2,271

39.7%

-81

-3.6%

Secondary

2,089

36.8%

2,065

36.1%

24

1.2%

123

2.2%

132

2.3%

-9

-6.8%

Basic

Breakdown of employees of Lithuania Post based on age
In 2016, the average age of Lithuania Post’s employees increased from 45.3 to 45.8 years.
This is determined by several following factors: general trends of employee ageing in Lithuania and the EU;
positions, such as postmen, are less attractive to young people.
Age

2016
Number of
employees

2015
Comparative
part, %

Number of
employees

Change per year

Comparative
part, %

Employees

Under 35

1,184

20.9%

1,174

20.5%

10

0.9%

From 35 to 45

1,220

21.5%

1,325

23.2%

-105

-7.9%

From 45 to 55

1,817

32.0%

1,878

32.8%

-61

-3.2%

From 55 to 60

833

14.7%

803

14.0%

30

3.7%

Over 60

616

10.9%

541

9.5%

75

13.9%
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Lithuania Post takes care of courses intended for upgrading employees’ qualification or skills in a coherent
manner. In 2016, different trainings were organised in the Company: on-line (via EMTS system), newcomers’,
and sales training; employees participated in different seminars and conferences.
Number of programmes

Number of employees trained

In-house training

31

Training outside the Company

49

194

On-line training

23

1,600

103

8,538

In total:

6,744

Cooperation with Trade Unions
Lithuania Post continues successful cooperation with two trade union organisations - the Trade Union of
Employees of Lithuania Post and the Lithuanian Communication Workers Trade Union. In April 2015 a
renewed Company's Collective Agreement was signed. During regular meetings with representatives of the
trade unions the Company's management introduces all foreseen changes, strategical projects, all essential
changes related to work conditions of employees are discussed, information about psychological atmosphere
in individual divisions, difficulties experienced by workers is shared.
Once a year (in April or May) an annual meeting of employees is held. During it the Company's management
provides a presentation about fulfilment of obligations defined in the Collective Agreement.

Key Provisions of the Collective Agreement
The Collective Agreement was signed on 7 April 2015.
The Collective Agreement applies solely to the employees of the Public Limited Company Lietuvos Paštas.
Due to changes in the Labour Code the Company's management will start negotiations on renewal of the
Collective Agreement.
Environmental Protection
Lithuania Post has no considerable interaction with natural environment during the provision of services. The
company uses no specific resources and no land plots for its activities; it does not transport specific cargoes,
thus, does not emit by-products resulting from its operation, i.e. it does not release any pollutants into the
environment which could exceed the permissible level.
Where possible, the Company uses advanced means and technological processes for conducting its activities
and meets ecological standards which help reduce negative impact on the environment, reduce the
consumption of electrical power, water, and fuel. In 2016, the Company reduced its power consumption by
5.4%, and fuel – by 3.9 %.
Risk Management
The Company faces the following key risks in its activities: regulatory uncertainties, market changes,
macroeconomic factors, credits, interest rates, currency exchange rates, liquidity.
Regulatory risks arise from changes in legal environment and from decisions taken by regulatory institutions.
It constitutes the risk that regulatory institutions, i.e. the Communications Regulatory Authority and the Bank
of Lithuania will strengthen certain rules or requirements, and it may limit possibilities of activities of
Lithuania Post.
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Lithuania Post is facing competition in the market where the number of competitors grows and individual
market segments generating high income shrink. There is a risk that Lithuania Post will not be able to
counterbalance and maintain revenues earned in shrinking market segments. With the aim to maintain the
market share the Company occupies and to comply with requirements set for the quality of service, the
Group directs its service extension strategy to growing markets and seeks for reduced operating expenses.
The economic situation in Lithuania affects the sales volumes of the Company and, as a result, its
performance results. Postal services closely correlate with the general economic situation in the country. The
key factors having an impact on the activities of the Company are purchasing power of citizens and
companies, unemployment level, income level – all these factors determine demand for postal services and
depend on the level of economic development. The expansion of the range of services provided via the
Internet and the replaceability of postal services by electronic ones explains the reduction in demand for
traditional postal services in the market. For this reason, the Company will inevitably face the loss of a
considerable part of income.
Information on financial risks (credit, interest rate, currency exchange rate, liquidity) is provided in Note. 27
of financial statements 2016 of the Company.

Prospects and Threats
Threats

Prospects
Development of new services with higher added value

Recovering labour market poses threat to lose
the best employees

Increasing of the market share of dispatch of items

Entry of new competitors (including
international ones) into the market of
dispatch of items

Improvement of the existing services by offering customers
higher additional value

Decreasing population

Expansion of electronic services and channels

Increase of minimal and average wage

Optimisation of the physical infrastructure of the LP Group

Unfavourable changes in regulation are possible

Reduction of customer service costs

Quicker shrinkage of the market of information sending
services than planned (due to electronic substitutes)

Improvement and optimisation of processes of the core
activities
Significant growth opportunities in the market of financial
services due to access to customers
Possibilities of acquisition of business enterprises seeking to
expand and diversify activities

Research and Development Activities
The Company conducts long-term strategic planning which enables it to establish directions for the Group’s
development and required investments. In the period from 2017 to 2021, Lithuania Post will continue its
projects which are important for expansion of new services, for automation of service-related processes and
optimisation of work, as well as for adjustment of its infrastructure to the needs and convenience of
customers.
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Correspondence between Performance Results and Company’s Goals
When implementing the set objectives, in 2016 Lithuania Post earned net profit amounting to EUR 993,000
instead of the planned EUR 372,000.
One of the Company’s goals is to maintain the leading positions in the market of postal services and to
develop international postal services. According to the data of the report of the Communications Regulatory
Authority (CRA), Lithuania Post occupied the biggest share of the market in 2016 Q4 accounting for 40.1 %
of the common postal services market, and accounting for 96.4% of this market in terms of income received
from consignments sent using the postal network.
Seeking for efficiency of activities and high quality of services the Company optimises and modernizes
internal processes, renews information systems.
To satisfy the needs of corporate customers (which have an agreement) an electronic self-service system of
Lithuania Post (e-self service) has been implemented. Using the e-self service system registered mail may be
tracked, and the possibility of an addressing error is eliminated: entered addresses are verified, postal codes
are assigned to consignments in Lithuania, and customs documents to be completed for parcels sent to
foreign countries are selected, it is specified how to correctly complete them.
During execution of the project "Development of Delivery System of Electronic Messages and Electronic
Documents to Natural and Legal Persons" the e-delivery system has been implemented. As the winner of the
tender announced by the Information Society Development Committee under the Ministry of Transport and
Communications Lithuania Post became an official operator of the e-delivery system. Throughout the year
2016 the Company performed e-delivery dissemination and publicity activities.
Plans and Forecast
Having regard to strategic goals of Lithuania Post for 2017 to 2021 the Company initiates and continues
started automation, activities optimisation and quality improvement initiatives.
In 2017, Lithuania Post will place particular emphasis on increase of income in growing markets - continuous
growth of income from sending of correspondence items in the general income structure is foreseen.
In 2017, operating expenses will increase due to growth of the wage fund (it will be caused by increase of
minimal and average wage in the labour market) and higher expenses of international mail transport and
payments to foreign postal institutions. Nevertheless, Lithuania Post will implement many efficiency
initiatives which will enable control of operating expenses.
In 2017, the Company plans to invest EUR 5.9 million, seeking to increase its operational efficiency, reduce
operating expenses, and modernise post offices. This will give a rise to faster and more effective customer
service - the strategical objectives related to boosting of customer satisfaction will be reached.
The Company implements the project "The Postman of the Future" aimed at automation of postal services
rendered by postmen by increasing efficiency , alterations of the service rendering process, so that customers
are able to use postal services not only at the postal counter, but also without leaving their home.
Postage Stamps Issuance
Lithuania Post annually issues 25-27 new postage prepayment impressions. Being the universal postal service
provider, Lithuania Post is obliged to issue and withdraw from circulation the means of postal prepayment
as prescribed in the Postal Law (Article 16(2)(5)).
The subject of a postage stamp is chosen in accordance with Clause II of the Rules for the Issue, Withdrawal
from Circulation and Accounting of Postage Prepayment Impressions approved by Order No. 3-258 of the
Minister for Transport and Communications of the Republic of Lithuania of 30 April 2013, meanwhile, the
designs of postage stamps are chosen and printed in accordance with Clauses III and IV of the aforementioned
Rules.
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In 2016, the Company issued the following new stamps of postal prepayment impressions and their series as
follows:



















02/01/2016 - Vytis (an armour-clad knight on horseback holding a sword and shield), a symbol of
the coat of arms of Lithuania (a standard 6 postage stamp series);
12/01/2016 - The 25th anniversary of events of January 13th (a postage stamp);
13/02/2016 – Lithuanian Red Book. Mushrooms (a 2 postage stamp series);
20/02/2016 - The 100th birth anniversary to Julius Juzeliūnas (a postage stamp);
05/03/2016 - Technical monuments. Paper factory of Naujieji Verkiai (a postage stamp);
02/04/2016 - Tourism in Lithuania. Oak Park in Kaunas (a postage stamp);
16/04/2016 - The 25th anniversary of diplomatic relations between Japan and the Republic of
Lithuania (a postage stamp);
07/05/2016 - Europe. Think Green (a 2 postage stamp series);
04/06/2016 - Famous people from Lithuania (a postage stamp);
25/06/2016 - Lithuanian animals. The Žemaitukai (a postage stamp block);
09/07/2016 - Culinary heritage (a postage stamp);
06/08/2016 - 2016 Summer Olympics (a 2 postage stamp series);
17/09/2016 - The 25th anniversary of Lithuania's membership in the United Nations (a postage
stamp);
08/10/2016 - Modern Lithuanian Art. Graphics (a postal stamp);
29/10/2016 - The 150th birth anniversary to Kazys Grinius (a postal stamp);
05/11/2016 - The 100th anniversary of restoration of Lithuania's independence (a postage stamp);
08/11/2016 - The 25th anniversary of the Baltic Assembly (a postage stamp);
12/11/2016 - Holy Christmas and New Year (a 2 postage stamp series).

Lithuania Post provided Lithuanian business entities with an opportunity to acquire a unique representative
postage stamp. In 2016, the following postage stamps of representative type were issued:
 On 29 January 2016 - for one of the biggest and most modern milk processing companies in
Lithuania, namely, Žemaitijos Pienas;
 On 3 June 2016 - for the State Enterprise Klaipėda State Seaport Authority;
 On 15 June 2016 - for the social responsibility project Three Sisters;
 On 14 October 2016 - for the public enterprise "National Automobile Club";
 On 3 March 2017 - for the Lithuanian Association of LION Clubs.
In 2016, four quarterly information publications intended for philatelists, journalists and regions of the
Company Ekspresinformacija were released.
Social Responsibility
Environmental Protection
More than 2,000 employees of our company joined the cleaning campaign "Darom" (Let's do it) with the
priority of the year Lithuania Post has actively urged citizens to participate in the campaign - in the most
towns, small towns and villages environment was cleaned by also removing old, not used blocks of mail
boxes standing needless in backyards and at roadsides.
Employees
"The Lithuania Post's Employee Health Program" won the first prize in the competition for the title "Socially
Responsible Company" organised by the Association of European Postal Operators. 500 Company's
employees participated in the program.
For the fifth consecutive year May is announced to be the Month of Good Service. Citizens voted and elected
employees of Lithuania Post who service customers the best. Almost 3,500 customers have assessed daily
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work of postmen, post managers and customer service professionals, employees of divisions of financial
services PayPost and LP EXPRESS couriers. In total, 15 employees of Lithuania Post who service customers
the best were elected: three postmen, three customer service professionals working in post offices, three
post managers, three employees of PayPost divisions and three LP EXPRESS couriers.
Several times a year administration team members traditionally become unpaid blood donors. Cooperation
is conducted with the National Blood Centre.
Communities
Employees of the Company have joined the campaign "Pagalba daiktais" (Help with Things). They have
donated a plenty of domestic tools, instruments and devices. All the things donated during the campaign
have reached large families, single mothers, seniors and other people in need.
For the money donated by Company's administration team members a chess table was presented to the
children day care centre "Sotas", and a light table to the children of the Lithuanian Centre for Pre-School
Hearing Impaired Children.
The Company has joined the national campaign "Už saugią Lietuvą" (For Safe Lithuania) - it supports the
Širvintos Children Day Care Centre which is attended by more than 30 children daily. On the occasion of
Christmas children attending the Children Day Care Centre wrote letters to Santa Claus. Company's
employees have made more than 40 wishes come true.
The Company also took part in the campaign "Knygų Kalėdos" (Christmas of Books).
Education
On 1 April the Republic of Užupis in Vilnius celebrated the 19th anniversary of its independence. During the
event the Post Užupis was announced to be the value of Užupis.
Together with the National Dictation there were selected the most complicated words in terms of typography
- citizens in social networks were incited to keep in mind their writing.
The Company participated in the campaign "Kontaktų mugė" (The Fair of Contacts) organised for students of
all faculties by the Vilnius College in Higher Education and the Vilnius Gediminas Technical University, seeking
to establish contacts, answer questions of students and use the excellent opportunity for communication
and discussions with active students of the college.
In April in the Vilnius Central Post Office a philatelic exhibition of the collector Antanas Burkus was opened.
During it postage stamps of the one of the most renowned Lithuanian painters of the 20th century, refugee
Vytautas Kazimieras Jonynas (1907-1997) were exhibited. According to art critics, these are the most
beautiful postage stamps issued in Germany.
In April, in the Vilnius Central Post Office the exhibition of postage stamps of Andrius Šimkus "Vilnius - the
Capital of Lithuania" was opened where postal stamps and envelopes illustrating Vilnius issued by Lithuania
and various foreign countries were exhibited.
In June, in the Vilnius Central Post Office there was opened the exhibition of postage stamps and envelopes
of the renowned philatelist and collector Henrikas Kebeikis "Humans on the Moon". The exhibition was
displayed not only in Lithuania, but also in USA, Italy and the neighbouring Belarus. In international philatelic
exhibitions this exposition was awarded with even 9 medals.
In September, in the Vilnius Central Post Office the exhibition of souvenir envelopes "Lithuanian Cultural
Elite" was opened. The author of the exhibition - Antanas Rimantas Šakalys. More than 320 souvenir
envelopes were displayed during the exhibition.
In December, in the Vilnius Central Post Office the exhibition of postage stamps of 1 Litas denomination was
opened, and a portrait of Dr. Jonas Basanavičius was exhibited. In stands of the exhibition more than 600
postage stamps of 1 Litas denominations were exhibited.
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The Company organised over 100 excursions and creative seminars in the whole Lithuania.
Information on Special Obligations
In accordance with Order No 4-1100 of the Minister for Economy of 20 December 2013 “On the
Determination of Special Obligations to State-Controlled Companies and the Approval of Recommendations
for the Provision of Information”, the Company considers the provision of universal postal services and the
delivery of periodicals to the subscribers of rural areas to be its special obligations.
In 2016 financial statements, namely, statement of the financial position and statement of comprehensive
income, the Company provides no breakdown of financial information based on the performed functions.
Information on the special obligations of the Company is provided as a separate document.
Information on the Compliance with the Provisions of Chapters IV-VII of the Description of the Guidelines
for Ensuring Transparency of Performance of the State-Controlled Companies
In conducting its activities the Company follows the provisions of the Transparency Policy approved by
Resolution No. 1052 of the Government of the Republic of Lithuania of 14 July 2010. The 2016 annual report
has been drawn up in accordance with the provisions and requirements laid down in the Guidelines for
Ensuring Transparency.

CEO
Lina Minderienė
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Public Limited Company Lietuvos Paštas
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016

Company code: 121215587, address: J.Jasinskio St. 16, Vilnius
(All amounts are in EUR, unless otherwise stated)

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Notes
Sales revenue
Other operating income

4
5

Payroll related costs
International post transportation and settlement expenses
Utilities expenses
Transport lease
Cost of consumables
Repair and maintenance of assets
Depreciation and amortisation expenses of non-current assets
Other expenses

6

Profit from operations
Financial income
Financial (expenses)
Profit (loss)
Income tax
Net profit (loss)

7
7
24

Other comprehensive income (expenses)
Other comprehensive income (expenses) to be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods
Other comprehensive income (expenses) not to be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods
Total comprehensive income

2016
66 424 328
767 850
67 192 178

2015
(adjusted)
67 386 053
1 325 582
68 711 634

(40 669 218)
(10 902 160)
(1 886 797)
(2 361 775)
(1 287 081)
(2 379 634)
(1 621 732)
(5 208 977)
(66 317 375)
874 803
783 116
( 623 275)
1 034 644
( 42 021)
992 623

(36 673 756)
(12 670 061)
(1 889 870)
(2 270 648)
(1 458 441)
(2 291 316)
(1 578 246)
(21 054 008)
(79 886 346)
(11 174 711)
1 164 632
(1 185 213)
(11 195 293)
507 627
(10 687 666)

-

-

-

-

992 623

(10 687 666)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

These financial statements were approved and signed on 7 April 2017 by:

Aurika Pelanienė
Head of the Accounting Department - Chief
Accountant

Lina Minderienė
Chief Executive Officer

(signature)

(signature)
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Company code: 121215587, address: J.Jasinskio St. 16, Vilnius
(All amounts are in EUR, unless otherwise stated)

Statement of Financial Position
Notes
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Non-current tangible assets
Investment property
Non-current financial assets
Deferred tax assets
Current assets
Current assets held for sale
Inventories
Trade receivables
Prepayments, deferred expenses and accrued income
Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial borrowings
Non-current employee benefits
Grants and subsidies
Deferred income tax liability
Current liabilities
Financial borrowings
Trade payables
Advances received, accrued expenses
Current portion of non-current employee benefits
Corporate income tax
Other payables

2 882 095
26 870 900
2 032 698
6 003 265
136 190
37 925 148

(adjusted)
1 912 278
27 604 323
2 866 982
3 186 080
84 019
35 653 682

12
13
14
15
16
17

1 028 669
3 077 752
5 665 661
15 742 693
3 786 653
4 682 231
33 983 659
71 908 807

1 476 398
2 015 189
6 707 264
11 826 502
3 085 045
3 049 358
28 159 756
63 813 439

18
19

32 791 579
861 254
2 381
(10 560 415)
23 094 799

32 791 579
731 448
(10 687 666)
22 835 361

20
22
23
24

5 062 411
339 800
11 517
5 413 728

11 671 699
402 186
13 327
12 087 212

20

5 423 346
11 858 331
24 376 262
460 299
1 282 043
43 400 281
48 814 008
71 908 807

6 886 776
21 166 458
386 016
55 140
396 476
28 890 866
40 978 078
63 813 439

25
22
24
26

Total liabilities
Equity capital and liabilities in total

As at 31
December 2015

8
9
10
11
24

Total assets
EQUITY
Share capital
Legal reserve
Other reserves
Retained earnings
Total equity

As at 31
December 2016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
These financial statements were approved and signed on 7 April 2017 by:

Aurika Pelanienė
Head of the Accounting Department - Chief
Accountant

Lina Minderienė
Chief Executive Officer

(signature)

(signature)
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Cash flows statement
Notes
Cash flows from (to) operating activities
Net profit (loss)
Adjustment for non-cash items:
Corporate income tax
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss (profit) from sale of tangible non-current assets
Write-off and impairment (reversal of impairment) of tangible non-current assets,
assets held for sale and intangible assets
Change in allowance of trade receivables and inventories
Change in impairment of loans granted and investment in subsidiary
Increase (decrease) in non-current employee benefits
Change in provisions
Change in accrued expenses
Change in accrued income
Change in deferred income tax
Elimination of financial activity results

24
8, 9, 10, 23
5,6
3,5,8, 9
11, 13, 14
11
22
26

24

2016
992 623

2015
(adjusted)
(10 687 666)

94 192
1 621 732
( 111 952)

109 076
1 578 247
( 497 490)

83 933

4 804 369

252 508
(904 510)
11 897
915 060
1 195 037
(2 269 996)
( 52 171)
( 266 190)
1 562 163

( 25 204)
7 597 601
69 949
2 878 397
(1 090 187)
( 616 703)
( 52 825)
4 067 565

( 893 259)
881 356

( 540 125)
(3 230 399)

(2 239 345)

2 405 103

4 795 149
1 986 513
( 204 211)

( 291 511)
1 321 002
( 238 369)

5 888 366

3 493 266

(2 095 010)
1 297 336
(2 289 000)
571 316
258 314

( 21 966)
(2 224 668)
2 939 513
(2 570 052)
807 873
276 590

(2 257 044)

( 792 710)

2 039 893
(3 225 835)
( 692 298)
( 120 208)
(1 998 448)
1 632 873
3 049 358
4 682 231
4 682 231

2 876 080
(24 468 252)
( 186 734)
( 226 784)
(22 005 690)
(19 305 134)
22 354 492
3 049 358
3 049 358

247 770

-

Change in working capital:
(Increase) in inventories
Increase (decrease) in trade receivables

13
14

Increase (decrease) in other receivables, prepayments and deferred expenses
Increase (decrease) in trade payables
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities, advances received
Income tax paid

25, 26

Net cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investment activities
(Increase) in non-current financial assets
Acquisition of non-current assets (except for investments)
Transfer of non-current assets (except for investments)
Provision of loans
Recovery of loans
Received interest, dividends

11
8, 9
5, 6, 9, 12
11
11
7

Net cash flows from investment activities
Cash flows from financial activities
Loans received
(Repayment of) loans
Dividends (paid)
Interest (paid)
Net cash flows from financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash flows
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

20
20
7

Supplementary information on cash flows:
Non-monetary investment activity:
Disposal of non-current assets (except for investments) on credit
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

( 0)

These financial statements were approved and signed on 7 April 2017 by:

Aurika Pelanienė
Head of the Accounting Department - Chief
Accountant

Lina Minderienė
Chief Executive Officer

(signature)

(signature)
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Statement of Changes in Equity

Notes

Share capital

Balance as at 31 December 2014

-

-

-

-

-

-

46 683

-

(10 687 666) (10 687 666)
( 46 683)
( 186 734)
( 186 734)

32 791 579
-

731 448
-

-

(10 687 666)
992 623

22 835 361
992 623

32 791 579

129 806
-

-

992 623
( 129 806)
( 43 268)
( 692 298)
(10 560 415)

992 623
( 40 887)
( 692 298)
23 094 799
23 094 799

Total comprehensive income (adjusted)

Total comprehensive income
Transfer to legal reserve
Transfer to other reserves
Used from other reserves
Approved dividends
Balance as at 31 December 2016

19
19
19

861 254

-

Total

684 765

Other comprehensive income (expenses)

Other comprehensive income (expenses)

Retained
earnings
(deficit)

Other
reserves

32 791 579

Net profit (loss) (adjusted)

Transfer to legal reserve
Approved dividends
Balance as at 31 December 2015
(adjusted)
Net profit

Legal reserve

43 268
( 40 887)
2 381

233 417

33 709 761

(10 687 666)

(10 687 666)

-

-

Dividend per share for the year of 2016 was 0.006 (0.002 - in 2015) (Note 18)

0
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
These financial statements were approved and signed on 7 April 2017 by:

Aurika Pelanienė
Head of the Accounting Department - Chief
Accountant

Lina Minderienė
Chief Executive Officer

(signature)

(signature)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
1 General Information
Public limited company Lietuvos Pastas (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Company’) is a public limited liability company registered in the Republic of
Lithuania. The address of its registered office is as follows:
J.Jasinskio g. 16,
Vilnius,
Lietuva.
The Company started its activity on 2 January 1992 and was named as State Enterprise Lietuvos Pastas. Based on Order 3-587 of 23 December 2005
‘On the Reorganisation of State Enterprise Lietuvos Pastas into Public Limited Liability Company Lietuvos Pastas’, the Ministry of Transport and
Communications reorganised State Enterprise Lietuvos Pastas into Public Limited Liability Company Lietuvos Pastas from 3 January 2006.
The Ministry of Transport and Communications of the Republic of Lithuania managed 100% of the Company's shares. Activities of the Company
include the provision of universal, other postal, courier, financial services and similar services.
As at 31 December 2016, the share capital of the Company was comprised of 113 074 410 ordinary shares with the par value of EUR 0.29 (on 31
December 2015 - EUR 0.29) and were fully paid. The Company did not hold its own shares.
The Company has no branches.
As at 31 December 2016, the Public Limited Liability Company Lietuvos Pastas had these 100%-controlled subsidiaries: Lietuvos Pasto Finansines
Paslaugos, UAB, LP Mokejimu Sprendimai, UAB, and Baltic Post, UAB, the details of which as at 31 December 2016 were as follows:

Baltic Post,UAB
Country
Shares controlled by the Company
Investment (accounting value in EUR)
Profit (loss) for 2016
Equity as at 31 December 2016
Activity

LP Mokėjimų Sprendimai, UAB

Lithuania
100%
0
(140 127)
(6 305 874 )
Courier services

Lietuvos Pašto
Finansinės Paslaugos, UAB
Lithuania
Lithuania
100%
100%
2 896
2 896
107 237
(23 829)
90 093
21 447
Consultation services
Printing services

The Company received the licence of an electronic money institution which enables the Company to provide the following services:
- issuing, distributing and redeeming electronic money;
- services which enable cash to be paid in payment accounts and all operations related to the management of payment accounts;
- services which enable cash withdrawals from payment accounts and all operations related to the management of payment accounts;
- execution of payment transactions including transfers of funds to the payment account opened at user’s payment service provider or other
payment service provider institution: - execution of direct debit transfers including onetime direct debit transfers; execution of payment transactions
using payment cards or similar mean; - execution of credit transfers, including periodical transfers;
- issuing and (or) receiving means of payment;
- money transfers.
As at 31 December 2016, the number of employees of the Company were 5 649 ( compared to 5 678 on 31 December 2015).
The Company's management authorised these financial statements on 7 April 2017. The shareholders of the Company have a statutory right to
either approve these financial statements or not to approve them and request that the management to prepare a new set of financial statements.
2 Summary of Accounting Principles
The principle accounting policies adopted in preparing these financial statements of the Company for the year 2016 were as follows:
2.1

Basis of Preparation
The Company's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the European Union (hereinafter the EU).
These financial statements are separate financial statements of the Company prepared under historical cost basis. The consolidated financial
statements of Public Limited Company Lietuvos paštas and its subsidiaries are presented separately. The consolidated financial statements can
be obtained in the head office of the Company at 16 Jasinskio St., Vilnius.
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2 Summary of Accounting Principles (continued)
2.1

Basis of Preparation (continued)
Adoption of new and (or) amended IFRS and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) interpretations
The accounting principles of the Company did not change, except for the following new IFRS and/or amendments to them which have been
applied since 1 January 2016:
·

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Disclosure Initiative

The amendments aim at clarifying IAS 1 to address perceived impediments to preparers exercising their judgment in presenting their financial
reports. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. This amendment had no effect on the financial
statements of the Company.
·

Amendment to IAS16 Tangible Fixed Assets and to IAS 38 Intangible Assets: Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and provides additional guidance on how the depreciation
or amortisation of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets should be calculated. It is clarified that a revenue-based method is not
considered to be an appropriate manifestation of consumption. This amendment had no effect on the financial position or results of the
Company since the Company does not use any revenue-based depreciation and amortisation methods.
·

Amendments to IAS 16 Tangible Fixed Assets and IAS 41 Agricultures: Bearer Plants

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Bearer plants are now within the scope of IAS 16 Property,
Plant and Equipment and are subject to all of the requirements therein. The amendment had no effect on the financial reporting of the
Company because the Company has no bearer plants.
·

Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2015 . The amendment addresses accounting for the employee
contributions to a defined benefit plan. The objective of the amendment is to simplify the accounting for contributions that are independent of
the number of years of employee service, for example, employee contributions that are calculated according to a fixed percentage of salary. As
the Company's staff makes no such contributions, application of this amendment had no effect on the financial statements of the Company.
·

Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The amendments reinstate the equity method as an
accounting option for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in an entity's separate financial statements. Application of these
amendments had no effect on the Company's financial statements since the Company applies the historical cost method.
·

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. IFRS 11 addresses the accounting for interests in joint
ventures and joint operations. The amendment adds new guidance on how to account for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation that
constitutes a business in accordance with IFRS and specifies the appropriate accounting treatment for such acquisitions. Application of these
amendments had no effect on financial reporting of the Company since the Company had no transactions which would fall within the scope of
application of this amendment.
The IASB has issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010 – 2012 Cycle, which is a collection of amendments to IFRSs. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2015. None of these had an effect on the Company’s financial statements:
§ IFRS 2 Share-Based Payment;
§ IFRS 3 Business Combinations;
§ IFRS 8 Operating Segments;
§ IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement;
§ IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment;
§ IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures;
§ IAS 38 Intangible Assets.
• The IASB has issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 – 2014 Cycle, which is a collection of amendments to IFRSs. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. None of these had an effect on the Company’s financial statements.
§ IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations;
§ IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures;
§ IFRS 19 Employee Benefits;
§ IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.
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2

Summary of Accounting Principles (continued)
2.1

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements (continued)
Standards issued but not yet effective
The Company did not apply the following IFRS and IFRIC interpretations which were approved on the date of signature of these financial
statements but have not entered into force yet:
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2018)
IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 and introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The Company
has not assessed the impact of this standard yet.
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2018)
IFRS 15 establishes a five-step model that will apply to revenue earned from a contract with a customer, regardless of the type of revenue
transaction or the industry. Extensive disclosures will be required, including disaggregation of total revenue; information about performance
obligations; changes in contract asset and liability account balances between periods and key judgments and estimates. The Company has not
assessed the impact of application of this standard yet.
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (clarifications) (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, once
endorsed by the EU)
The objective of the Clarifications is to clarify the IASB’s intentions when developing the requirements in IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, particularly the accounting of identifying performance obligations amending the wording of the “separately identifiable” principle,
of principal versus agent considerations including the assessment of whether an entity is a principal or an agent as well as applications of
control principle and of licensing providing additional guidance for accounting of intellectual property and royalties. The Clarifications also
provide additional practical expedients for entities that either apply IFRS 15 fully retrospectively or that elect to apply the modified
retrospective approach. The Company has not assessed the impact of application of this standard yet.
IRFS 16 Leases (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2019, once endorsed by the EU)
IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 and specifies how to recognize, measure, present and disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessee accounting
model, requiring lessees to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a
low value. Lessor accounting is substantially unchanged. In view of the Company's management, application of the standard will considerably
increase in the Company's assets and liabilities.
Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2017, once
endorsed by the EU)
The amendments improve information provided to users of financial statements about an entity's financing activities. Entities are required to
disclose changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, for
example, by providing reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the statement of financial position for liabilities arising from
financing activities. Application of these amendments will have no effect on the financial position of the Company or its operating results,
however, there might be some changes in disclosures in the financial statements.
Amendments to IAS 12 TAS Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses (effective for financial years beginning on
or after 1 January 2017, once endorsed by the EU)
The amendments clarify how to account for deferred tax assets for unrealized losses on debt instruments measured at fair value. The Company
has not assessed the impact of application of this standard yet.
Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-Based Payment Transactions (effective for financial years beginning on or
after 1 January 2018, once endorsed by the EU)
The Amendments provide requirements on the accounting for the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on the measurement of cashsettled share-based payments, for share-based payment transactions with a net settlement feature for withholding tax obligations and for
modifications to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment that changes the classification of the transaction from cash-settled to
equity-settled. The Company has not assessed the impact of application of this standard yet.
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2

Summary of Accounting Principles (continued)
2.1

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements (continued)
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 – Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (In December 2015
the IASB postponed the effective date of this amendment indefinitely pending the outcome of its research project on the equity method of
accounting)
The amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and those in IAS 28, in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The main consequence of the amendments is that a full gain or
loss is recognised when a transaction involves a business and partial gain or loss is recognised when a transaction involves assets that do not
constitute a business. The Company has not assessed the impact of application of this standard yet.
IFRS 4: Application of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments along with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (Amendments) (effective for financial years beginning
on or after 1 January 2018, once endorsed by the EU)
The Amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments address concerns arising from
implementing the new financial instruments Standard, IFRS 9, before implementing the new insurance contracts standard that the Board is
developing to replace IFRS 4. The amendments introduce two options for entities issuing insurance contracts: a temporary exemption from
applying IFRS 9 and an overlay approach, which would permit entities that issue contracts within the scope of IFRS 4 to reclassify, from profit or
loss to other comprehensive income, some of the income or expenses arising from designated financial assets. The Company has not assessed
the impact of application of this standard yet.
Amendments to IFRS 40 – Transfers of Investment Property (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2018, once endorsed
by the EU)
The Amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under construction or development into, or out of
investment property. The Amendments state that a change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions for the use of a property does not
provide evidence of a change in use. The Company has not assessed the impact of application of this standard yet.
IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January
2018, once endorsed by the EU)
The Interpretation clarifies the accounting for transactions that include the receipt or payment of advance consideration in a foreign currency.
The Interpretation covers foreign currency transactions when an entity recognizes a non-monetary asset or a non-monetary liability arising from
the payment or receipt of advance consideration before the entity recognizes the related asset, expense or income. The Interpretation states
that the date of the transaction, for the purpose of determining the exchange rate, is the date of initial recognition of the non-monetary
prepayment asset or deferred income liability. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine a date of
the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The Company has not assessed the impact of application of this
standard yet.
The IASB has issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014 – 2016 Cycle, which is a collection of amendments to IFRSs. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 for IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and on or after 1 January
2018 for IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards and for IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.
Earlier application is permitted for IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. Adoption of these amendments will not have impact on
Company's financial position and operating results, however might have impact on disclosures in the financial statements.
• IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards: This improvement deletes the short-term exemptions regarding
disclosures about financial instruments, employee benefits and investment entities, applicable for first time adopters.
• IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: The amendments clarify that the election to measure at fair value through profit or loss
an investment in an associate or a joint venture that is held by an entity that is venture capital organization, or other qualifying entity, is
available for each investment in an associate or joint venture on an investment-by-investment basis, upon initial recognition.
• IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in IFRS 12, other than those of
summarized financial information for subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, apply to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or
an associate that is classified as held for sale, as held for distribution, or as discontinued operations in accordance with IFRS 5.
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2

Summary of Accounting Principles (continued)
2.2

Presentation currency
The amounts shown in these financial statements are measured and presented in the national currency of the Republic of Lithuania, namely,
euro (EUR).
The functional currency of the Company is euro. Transactions concluded in foreign currency are initially recorded in the functional currency as
at the date of the conclusion of a transaction. Financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rate of exchange as at the date of the statement of the financial position.
The exchange rates of the euro to other currencies are set daily by the Bank of Lithuania.

2.3

Segment Information
The Company’s shares are not traded in the stock exchange, therefore, the Company does not apply IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’. For this
reason, the information on segments according to IFRS 8 requireents is not presented in these financial statements.

2.4

Use of Estimates in Preparation of Financial Statements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the International Financial Reporting Standards requires the management to make
certain assumptions and estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and disclosure of contingencies.
The significant areas of these financial statements wherein estimates are used relate to non-current employee benefits (Notes 2.21 and 22),
impairment of assets and determination of the fair value (Notes 2.9, 2.10, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15 and 16), useful lives of assets (Notes 2.6,
2.7, 8, 9), deferred income tax (Notes 2.12 and 24), recognition of accrued income (Notes 2.5 and 15) and recognition of accrued expenses
(Notes 2.5 and 25), determination of compensation receivable from the service of delivery of periodicals to the subscribers of residential areas
(Note 16) and estimation of, whether the lease contract complies with the financial or lease of activity criteria (Notes 2.20 and 21). Future
events which will cause the assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effect of any changes in estimates will be recorded in
the financial statements when determinable.

2.5

Revenue and Cost Recognition
All revenue is recognised net of VAT and discounts.
Expenses are recognised on the basis of accrual and revenue and expense matching principles in the reporting period when the income related
to these expenses was earned, irrespective of the time the money was spent. In those cases when the costs incurred cannot be directly
attributed to the specific income and they will not bring income during the future periods, they are expensed as incurred.
The amount of expenses is usually accounted for as the amount paid or due to be paid, excluding VAT. In those cases when long period of
payment is established and the interest is not distinguished, the amount of expenses is estimated by discounting the amount of payment using
the market interest rate.
Revenue of postal services provision to the Lithuanian clients
Income is recognised on the basis of the accrual principle of accounting, i.e. it is registered when it is earned, irrespective of when the cash is
received.
Revenue from rendering postal and other services is recognised after the service is rendered, when the outcome of the transaction can be
estimated reliably.
Revenue from sale of stamps is recognised when the cash is received (invoice is issued), since there is no reliable way to determine in which
period the stamp was actually used, i.e. the service was rendered.
According to the service agreement, services are provided over more than one reporting period, revenue is allocated proportionally to periods
in which the services are rendered.
Revenue/expenses of postal services provision to foreign posts
The Company’s performance is based on international agreements which regulate the issuance of accounting documents and acounting rules
for postal services provided and payment for them. Pursuant to these agreements, the Company provides and reconciles actual data on the
provision/receipt of the amounts of postal services as well as receivables/payables, submits and coordinates with the purchasers/suppliers
(foreign post-offices) of postal services within 2-3 months after the end of a quarter. Factual details including the amounts of the
provided/received postal services of postal correspondence delivery are provided and coordinated with the purchasers/suppliers of postal
services (international post offices) within 2-3 months after the end of a quarter. Calculation of receivable/payable amounts of postal
correspondence is performed after 6 months from the end of reference period, when factual prices are discovered. Factual prices are based on
the service quality surveys and are established for individual countries solely almost a year after the end of a reference period. Given the factual
capacity of provided/received services and the latest known effective prices, the Company is making income / expenses accruals.
Other revenue
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Revenue from interest, rental and other income are recognised on
the accrual basis.

35

Public Limited Company Lietuvos Paštas
Company code: 121215587, address: J.Jasinskio St. 16, Vilnius
(All amounts are presented in euros, unless specified otherwise)
2

Summary of Accounting Principles (continued)
2.6

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over 3-10 years useful lives.
Intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The useful lives, residual values and amortisation method are reviewed annually to ensure that they are consistent with the expected pattern of
intangible assets.
The Company does not have any intangible assets with indefinite useful life.

2.7

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including non-refundable purchase taxes and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as repair and maintenance costs, are normally charged to the statement of comprehensive
income in the period the costs are incurred.
Construction-in-progress is stated at cost. This includes the cost of construction, structures and facilities/equipment and other directly
attributable costs. Construction-in-progress is not depreciated until the relevant assets are completed and put into operation.
Where tangible non-current assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, their acquisition value/the cost and related depreciation are removed
from the financial statements and any related gains or losses, calculated as difference between inflows and net book value of transferred
tangible non-current assets are included in the statement of comprehensive income.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line bass allocating their cost to the residual value over the following estimated periods of useful lives:
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Computer equipment
Communication tools
Furniture
Other equipment, devices, tools and fixtures
Other tangible non-current assets

15 - 80 years
6 - 10 years
10 years
3 - 7 years
3 - 15 years
10 years
6 - 10 years
4-10 years

The useful life, residual value and depreciation method are annually reviewed to ensure that they are consistent with the expected pattern of
use of items of tangible non-current assets.
2.8

Investment property
Investment property of the Company are comprised of real estate which is held to generate rental income or value increase on the moment of
asset sale. The Company considers investment property as the property which is leased under one or several operating lease agreements and if
the leased area is significant compared to the total area. Investment property is accounted for at the acquisition cost less accumulated
depreciation or recognised impairment loss. The initial cost of investment property is comprised of its purchase price, including nonrefundable purchase taxes and all directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to its working condition or location for its intended use.
Expenditures, such as repair and mantenance costs, which are incurred after the investment property has been put into operation, are usually
charged to the statement of comprehensive income in the period during which they were incurred. Depreciation of assets is computed on a
straight-line basis over the period of useful life (15-80 years).
Investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the statement of comprehensive income in the year the asset is derecognised. Transfer to or from investment property are made
if and only if it is obvious that the usage purpose of asset has changed.
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2.9

Impairment of assets
Financial assets
Financial assets are reviewed for impairment at each date of statement of financial position.
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, whenever it is probable that the Company will not collect all amounts due according to the
contractual terms of loans or receivables, an impairment or bad debt loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. The reversal
of impairment losses previously recognised is recorded when the decrease in impairment loss can be justified by an event occurring after the
write-down. Such reversal is recorded in the statement of comprehensive income. However, the increased carrying amount is only recognised
to the extent it does not exceed the amortised cost that would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Other assets
Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income. Reversal of impairment losses recognised in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that the impairment
losses recognised for the asset no longer exist or have decreased. The reversal is accounted for in the same caption of the statement of
comprehensive income as the impairment loss.

2.10 Fair Value Measurements
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:
-

the principal market for the asset or liability, or
in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities are obtained from quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models or option pricing models as
appropriate.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 – quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 – valuation techniques for which the lowest level input is significant for the fair value measurement is directly and indirectly observable;
Level 3 – valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
Valuations are performed by the management at each reporting date. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined
classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.
In the financial statements of 31 December 2015 and 2016, the Company had no significant assets or liabilities repeatedly or once measured at
fair value, except for assets held for sale (Note 12).
Assets and liabilities for which fair value is disclosed in the financial statements comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade
and other payables and borrowings. The management assessed that the fair value of the borrowings as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 are
approximating their carrying value as they are subject to variable interest rates and that fair value of other mentioned financial assets and
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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2.11 Investments in Subsidiaries
Investments into subsidiaries in the Company’s stand-alone financial statements are carried at cost, less impairment. Such impairment is
estimated and applied for each investment separately.
2.12 Income tax
Income tax comprise current and deferred income tax. Income tax charge is based on profit for the year and considers deferred taxation.
Income tax is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, except the cases when income tax related to items recognised directly in
equity is recognised in equity.
The standard income tax rate in Lithuania is 15 %.
Tax losses can be carried forward for indefinite period, except for the losses which resulted from disposal of securities and (or) derivative
financial instruments. Such carrying forward is disrupted, if a company of the Group discontinues its activities due to which such losses incurred,
except for the cases where a company of the Company does not continue its activities due to the reasons beyond its control. Losses from
disposal of securities and (or) derivative financial instruments can be carried forward for 5 consecutive years and covered from the profit
generated by the transactions of the same nature. Tax losses to be carried forward from 1 January 2015 can be used to reduce the taxable profit
earned during the reporting year by maximum of 70%.
Deferred taxes are calculated using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax
purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to reverse based on tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the date of statement of the financial
position.
Deferred tax asset is recognised in the balance sheet to the extent the management of the Company believes it will be realised in the
foreseeable future, based on taxable profit forecasts. If it is believed that part of the deferred tax asset is not going to be realised, this part of
the deferred tax asset is not recognised in the financial statements.
2.13 Assets held for sale
Property, plant and equipment held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying value and fair value less cost to sell. Property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale if carrying value pays off by selling it, instead of keeping it in use. This requirement is met only when the
sale is highly probable and the asset is fully ready for immediate sale. Once property, plant and equipment is classified as asset held for sale, no
depreciation is calculated.
If asset held for sale fails to meet requirements described above, the Company does not classify such asset as held for sale and evaluates it at
net book value before reclassification to assets held for sale taking into consideration any adjustments of depreciation, amortisation or
revaluation that might be accounted for if asset was not classified as held for sale or as at the recoverable value evaluated after deciding not to
sell the asset, depending which value is lower. Adjustments of carrying value of asset that is no longer held for sale are accounted for as current
year profit (loss).
2.14 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimate of the selling price, less the costs of
completion, marketing and distribution. Cost is determined using first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of inventories comprises purchase
price, transport, and other costs directly attributable to the cost of inventories and non refundable tax from state authorities. Unrealisable
inventory are fully written-off.
2.15 Financial assets
According to IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” the Company’s financial assets are classified as either financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets, as
appropriate. All purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative finanial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are not quoted in the active market.
Receivables are initially recorded at fair value of remuneration. Receivables after the initial recognition are measured at the amortised cost
using the method of effective interest rate less any allowance for impairment. Gains or losses are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income when such assets are written off, their value decreases or they are amortised.
Impairment of receivables is accounted for when there are any signs that the value of receivables may be reduced, then the carrying value of
receivables is reduced using the impairment account. Impaired loans and receivables are written off when they are estimated as nonrecoverable.
On 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Company had no available-for-sale assets, no helt-to-maturity investments or any financial assets
measured at fair value in the statement of comprehensive income.

38

Public Limited Company Lietuvos Paštas
Company code: 121215587, address: J.Jasinskio St. 16, Vilnius
(All amounts are presented in euros, unless specified otherwise)
2 Summary of Accounting Principles (continued)
2.16 Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets
A financial asset (or, where appropriate, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:
- the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired;
- the Company preserves the right to receive cash flows from the asset but undertakes to pay them in full without material detaly to a third
party under a "pass through" agreement;
- the Company has transfered its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and/or (a) has transfered substantially all risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) has neither transfered, nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has transfered control of the asset.
When the Company has transfered its rights to receive to cash flows from an assets but has neither transfered, nor retained the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement in the
asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower amount of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.
Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or its term expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another to the same lender on substantially different terms, or when the terms and conditions of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as profit or loss.
2.17 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash is comprised of cash in hand and cash with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
a known amount of cash with original maturities of three months or less and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
For the purposes of the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits in current bank accounts, and other
highly liquid investments.
2.18 Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value of proceeds received less the costs of transaction. They are subsequently carried at amortised
cost, and the difference between net proceeds and redemption value being recognised in the net profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings (except for the capitalised part – see below). The borrowings are classified as non-current if the completion of a refincing
agreement before the date of the statement of financial position provides evidence that the substance of the liability at the date of the
statement of financial position was long-term.
Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as a part of the cost of a respective asset. All other borrowing costs are
recognised expenses in the period they occur. Borrowing costs include interest rate and other expenses incurred in relation to the borrowing of
funds. By the Company’s choice, target loans do not become general after the construction/acquisition of the assets of target purpose,
therefore, related borrowing assets are not further capitalised.
The Company capitalises the borrowing costs for all qualifying assets, however, in 2016 and 2015, no borrowing costs matching the
capitalisation criteria were incurred.
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2.19 Financial and operating leases
The determination of whether an agreement is considered a lease agreement is based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date of
whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the
asset.
Financial lease – Company as a Lessee
Financial lease, which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised
at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease
payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are reflected in statement of comprehensive income.
Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.
Operating lease – Company as a Lessee
Lease where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating lease.
Contingent rents under operating lease agreement are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
If the result of sale and leaseback transactions is operating lease and it is evident that the transaction has been carried out at fair value, any
profit or loss is recognised immediately. If the sales price is lower than the fair value, any profit or loss is recognised immediately, except for the
cases when the loss is compensated by lower than market prices for lease payments in the future. Then they are deferred and amortised in
proportion to the lease payments over a period during which any assets are expected to be operated. If the sales price exceeds the fair value, a
deferral is made for the amount by which the fair value is exceeded and it is amortised over the period during which the assets are expected to
be operated.
Operating lease payments are recognized as expenses in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Operating lease - Company as a Lessor
Lease where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the asset is classified as operating lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on a basis consistent with rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

2.20 Grants and subsidies
Grants and subsidies (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Grants’) received in the form of non-current assets or intended for the purchase,
construction or other acquisition of non-current assets are considered as asset-related Grants. Assets received free of charge are also allocated
to this group of Grants. The amount of a Grant related to assets in financial assets is recognised as the item of income related to this Grant
within the period of depreciation and in the statement of comprehensive income reduces the item of depreciation costs.
Grants received as compensation for the expenses or unearned income of the current or previous reporting period, also all other grants not
attributable to the Grants related to assets are considered Grants related to income. The income-related Grants are recognised as used in parts
to the extent of the expenses incurred during the reporting period or unearned income to be compensated by that grant.
Since 2012, the Company has received compensation for loss-making services of delivery of periodicals to residents of remote rural areas. The
amount of compensation is measued by the management of the Company according to the Rules for Compensating for Loss-Making Services of
Delivery of Periodicals to Subscribers of Remote Rural Areas approved by Resolution No. 835 of the Government of the Republic of Lithuania of
11 July 2012 (Edition of Resolution No. 707 of the Government of the Republic of Lithuania of 24 July 2013). Compensation is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income in the period in which the related costs are incurred and when it is possible to reliably estimate that the
amount of compensation will be received. The amount of compensation is reflected in the item of other costs in the statement of
comprehensive income.
2.21 Non-current employee benefits
In accordance with the requirements of the Labour Code of the Republic of Lithuania, each employee leaving the Company at the age of
retirement is entitled to a one-off payment in the amount of two monthly wages.
The current year cost of employee benefits is recognised as incurred in the statement of comprehensive income. The past service costs are
recognised as an expense in equal instalments over the average period until the benefits become vested. Any gains or losses resulting from
curtailment and/or settlement are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.
The above mentioned employee benefit obligation is calculated based on actuarial assumptions, using the projected unit credit method.
Obligation is recognised in the statement of financial position and reflects the present value of these benefits on the preparation date of the
statement of financial position. Present value of the non-current obligation to employees is determined by discounting estimated future cash
flows using the discount rate which reflects the interest rate of the Government bonds of the same currency and similar maturity as the
employment benefits. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.
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2.22 Provisions
Provisions are recognised where the Company as the current legal or constructive liability as a consequence of past events; which will most
likely require economic resources for the fulfilment of liabilities and that amount can be reliably calculated. Costs related to the accounting of
provisions are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. In cases where the effect of time value of money is significant, provisions
are discounted before tax rate which reflects the risk typical for the liability. When discounting is applied, increase in the provisions reflecting
the period of past time is accounted for as borrowing costs.
2.23 Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements, except for the contingent liabilities related to business combinations. They
are described in financial statements, except for the cases, where there is probability that resources embodying economic benefit will be lost is
very low.
A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
2.24 Subsequent Events
Subsequent events that provide additional information on the Company’s financial situation at the date of statement of the financial position
(adjusting events) are reflected in financial statements. Subsequent events which are not adjusting events are described in the notes when
material.
On the date of approval of these financial statements by the management, the Company had not prepared a draft of profit distribution.
2.25 Offsetting
When preparing the financial statements, assets and liabilities, as well as revenue and expenses are not set off, except in those cases where
certain IFRS specifically permit or require such set-off.
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Correction of prior period errors
In the independent auditor's report on the financial statements for year 2015 a qualified opinion was expressed on the recoverable amount of Company's noncurrent tangible and intangible assets and on the Company's investments and loan granted to the subsidiary UAB Baltic Post, therefore, the Company's
Management in 2016 performed the retrospective assessment of recoverable value of non-current tangible assets and investments and loan granted to UAB
Baltic Post as at 31 December 2015. The main non-current tangible assets valuation assumptions are provided in the Note 9. The valuation assumptions of the
recoverable value of investment and loan granted to the subsidiary Baltic Post are provided in the Note 11. Retrospective valuation results of tangible assets,
investments and loan granted were accounted by the Company as the correction of the comparative information of 2015. In the comparative information of
2015 following corrections are made:
1. Accounting for impairment of non-current tangible assets.
2. Accounting for impairment of investments and loan granted to UAB Baltic Post.
3. Accounting of deferred tax assets associated with the first adjustment.
4. Goods held on the consignment basis offsetting with the amount to be paid and accounting of revenue from such sales in net value.

Statement of financial position

31 December
2015)
(As announced
previously)

Correction
No.1

Correction
No.2

Correction
No.3

Non-current tangible assets

32 257 778

(4 653 455)

-

Non-current financial assets

10 783 681

-

(7 597 601)

Deferred income tax assets

31 December
2015
(Amounts
after
adjustments)

Correction
No.4

-

-

27 604 323

-

3 186 080

-

-

-

84 019

-

84 019

4 779 261

-

-

-

-

4 779 261

Total non-current assets

47 820 720

(4 653 455)

(7 597 601)

84 019

Total current assets

28 336 162

-

-

-

(176 406)

28 159 756

Total assets

76 156 882

(4 653 455)

(7 597 601)

84 019

(176 406)

63 813 439

Share capital

32 791 579

-

-

-

-

32 791 579

Mandatory reserves

731 448

-

-

-

-

731 448

Retained earnings

865 372

(4 653 455)

(7 597 601)

698 018

-

(10 687 666)

34 388 399

(4 653 455)

(7 597 601)

698 018

-

22 835 361

Deferred income tax liability

613 999

-

-

(613 999)

-

-

Other non-current liabilities

12 087 212

-

-

-

-

12 087 212

Total non-current liabilities
Total current liabilities

12 701 211
29 067 272

-

-

(613 999)
-

(176 406)

12 087 212
28 890 866

Total liabilities
Total equity and
liabilities

41 768 483

-

-

(613 999)

(176 406)

40 978 078

76 156 882

(4 653 455)

(7 597 601)

84 019

Other non-current assets

Total equity

Statement of
comprehensive income

Sales and other income
Operating expenses
Other expenses
Financial operations revenue
(expenses)
Income tax
Net profit (loss)

31 December
2015)
(As announced
previously)

Correction
No.1

Correction
No.2

Correction
No.3

35 653 683

63 813 439

31 December
2015
(Amounts
after
adjustments)

Correction
No.4

69 027 436
( 58 832 338)
(9 118 754)

(4 653 455)

(7 597 601)

-

( 20 581)

-

-

-

-

( 20 581)

( 190 391)
865 372

(4 653 455)

(7 597 601)

698 018
698 018

-

507 627
(10 687 666)

Error correction didn't affect the Company's operating, investment and financial activities cash flows of 2015.
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Sales revenue
2016
Universal postal service (UPS)
Postal services (except UPS)
Courier services
Financial services
Subscriptions of periodical publications
Retail sales
Other services

20 409 181
18 591 606
1 840 521
11 618 457
4 203 319
5 877 244
3 884 000
66 424 328

2015
(adjusted)
18 691 377
20 573 074
1 626 359
11 798 733
4 137 705
4 654 223
5 904 582
67 386 053

66424328

67386052,81

The universal postal service revenues, compared to 2015, increased by 9 percent, because the number of sent and received local and international registered
UPS parcels increased by 8,4 percent.
Decrease of revenue from postal services (except UPS) over 2016 was influenced by outgoing international parcels decrease affected by decrease by 80,9
percent of international correspondence parcels from China according to cooperation agreement with international logistics and transport company CLEVY
delivering the parcels from China to European countries.
Retail trade and commission trade income, compared to 2015, increased by 26,3 percent due to targeted assortment formation, self-service shopping.
Decrease of income from other services was influenced by reduced unaddressed advertising volumes and revenues from additional postal services related to
correspondence parcels from China according to cooperation agreement with international logistics and transport company CLEVY delivering the parcels from
China to European countries.
5

Other income
2016
Rent of premises
Gain from disposed non-current assets, net
Other income

6

637 914
120 513
9 423
767 850
767850

2015
595 416
596 218
133 948
1 325 582

Other expenses
2016
Acquisition cost of goods held for resale
Taxes, other than income tax
Impairment of investments to subsidiary (reversal)
Impairment of non-current assets held for sale
Impairment of non-current tangible assets
Loss from disposal of assets held for sale, net
Communication expenses
Courier service expenses
Rent of premises
Advertising and representation
Cash collection and escort fee
Consulting, auditing and security services
Banking services
Insurance services
Cost compensation
Other costs

(a)
(Notes 3, 11)
(Notes 3, 9)

(b)

(c)

3 687 084
1 483 580
( 904 510)
73 184
8 561
988 512
492 551
2 165 952
744 862
681 746
302 375
123 923
66 738
(7 099 426)
2 393 845
5 208 977

2015
(adjusted)
2 761 184
1 662 658
7 597 601
146 187
4 653 455
98 728
923 893
401 424
2 040 137
899 800
671 924
429 192
113 214
55 239
(4 792 305)
3 391 677
21 054 008

(5 208 977)

(21 054 008)

a) In 2016, the acquisition value of goods held for resale increased, because retail sales volumes increased, compared to 2015.
b) Courier services costs consist of the purchase of these services from the subsidiary Baltic Post.
c) Compensation of costs includes compensation of losses in delivery of subscription in rural areas of 6 341 080 euro (in 2015 - 4 792 305 euro) and the
universal postal services provision loss compensation of 758 346 euro (Note 2.20 and 16).
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Income and (expenses) from financial activity
2016
Foreign currency exchange gain
Interest income
Overdue fee income
Other income from financial activity
Total financial activities income

434 316
344 273
2 565
1 962
783 116
783 116
( 118 967)
( 501 633)
(2 675)
( 623 275)

Interest (expenses)
Foreign currency exchange (loss)
Other financial (expenses)
Total expenses from financial activity

2015
823 693
302 573
109
38 257
1 164 632
( 226 784)
( 897 098)
(61 331)
(1 185 213)

( 623 275)
8

Intangible assets

Patents and
licenses
Year ended on 31 December 2015
Net book value as at 1 January 2015
Acquisitions
Reclassification between the groups
Write-offs
Amortisation
Net book value 31 December 2015
31 December 2015
Acquisition value
Accumulated amortisation
Net book value
Year ended on 31 December 2016
Net book value as at 1 January 2016
Acquisitions
Reclassification between the groups
Write-offs
Amortisation
Net book value on 31 December 2016
31 December 2016
Acquisition value
Accumulated amortisaton
Net book value

Prepayment

Software

Total

78 466
(16 661)
61 805

947 057
( 703 046)
244 011

907 207
121 837
703 046
( 125 628)
1 606 462

1 932 730
121 837
( 142 289)
1 912 278

598 430
( 536 625)
61 805

244 011
244 011

4 703 257
(3 096 795)
1 606 462

5 545 698
(3 633 420)
1 912 278

61 805
97 797
(20 294)
139 308

244 011
919 947
( 644 723)
519 235

1 606 462
302 380
644 723
( 330 013)
2 223 552

1 912 278
1 320 124
( 350 307)
2 882 095

696 228
( 556 920)
139 308

519 235
519 235

5 650 361
(3 426 809)
2 223 552

6 865 824
(3 983 729)
2 882 095
2 882 095

Amortisation of Company's intangible assets is included in non-current assets depreciation and amortisation expenses caption in the statement of
comprehensive income statement.
According to the joint operations agreement of 30 December 2014 (with the amendment of 22 July 2016) on joint product development, the intangible assets
created in 2016 for 644 723 euro (in 2015, for 703 046 euro) were reclassified from the prepayments group to the software group. For the mentioned
intangible assets the amortization period of 5 years was set. The Company has fulfilled all obligations related to the joint venture agreement.
In 2015, the Company revised useful life of intangible assets, this change resulted in 78 thousand euro amortization expenses reduction.
The part of the Company's intangible assets with an acquisition value of 31 December 2016 equal to 3 377 206 euro was fully amortized (3 262 939 euro for 31
December 2015), but is still in use.
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Property, plant and equipment
Buildings and
structures

Machinery
and
equipment

Vehicles

Other
property,
plant and
equipment

Total

Year ended on 31 December 2015
Net book value of 1 January 2015
Acquisitions
Disposals
Write-offs
Impairment (Note 3)
Reclassification between groups
Reclassification from investment property
Reclassificationn to assets held for sale
Depreciation

28 456 338
( 354 882)
(4 653 456)
271 871
( 238 349)
( 704 821)

1 200 843
139 127
( 40 095)
( 136)
( 129 120)

694 557
891 934
( 10)
( 236 811)

1 539 118
1 071 770
( 874)
( 4 581)
( 298 100)

31 890 856
2 102 831
( 395 851)
( 4 727)
(4 653 456)
271 871
( 238 349)
(1 368 852)

Net book value of 31 December 2015 (adjusted)

22 776 701

1 170 619

1 349 670

2 307 333

27 604 323

42 542 696
(12 575 237)
(7 190 758)

2 579 875
(1 409 256)
-

4 379 710
(2 955 547)
(74 493)

3 636 157
(1 328 824)
-

53 138 438
(18 268 864)
(7 265 251)

22 776 701

1 170 619

1 349 670

2 307 333

27 604 323

22 776 701
( 472 396)
301 507
165 551
( 79 152)
( 364 495)
22 327 716

1 170 619
37 193
( 16 246)
( 619)
(124 727)
1 066 220

1 349 670
21 745
(265 773)
1 105 642

2 307 333
715 948
( 80)
(10 131)
(165 551)
( 476 197)
2 371 322

27 604 323
774 886
( 488 722)
( 10 750)
301 507
( 79 152)
(1 231 192)
26 870 900

42 269 541
(12 872 162)
(7 069 663)
22 327 716

2 542 640
(1 476 420)
1 066 220

4 401 456
(3 243 239)
(52 575)
1 105 642

4 147 473
(1 776 151)
2 371 322

53 361 110
(19 367 972)
(7 122 238)
26 870 900

As at 31 December 2015
Acquisition value
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment
Net book value as at 31 December 2015
(adjusted)
Year ended on 31 December 2016
Net book value as at 1 January 2016
Acquisitions
Sales
Write-offs
Reclassed from investment property
Reclassification between groups
Reclassification to the assets held for sale
Depreciation
Net book value of 31 December 2016
As at 31 December 2016
Acquisition value
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment
Net book value of 31 December 2016

26870900
The Company's property, plant and equipment's depreciation for 2016 consists of 1 231 192 euro (1 368 852 for 2015). The Company's comprehensive income
statement includes the above amount in non-current tangible assets depreciation and amortization costs item.
In 2016, UAB Jungtinis Verslas performed a retrospective (31 December 2015) valuation of recoverable amount of the non-current tangible assets group of
Buildings and Structures. The Company has accounted valuation results as correction of comparative information of 2015 (Note 3). Separate assets units were
assessed using comparative and income methods. A comparative method was applied in case of occurrence of analogical and similar assets transaction on the
active market. In determining the recoverable value of non-current tangible assets by income method, expected cash flows were discounted using 8-11 percent
discount rate. This method was used for assets which generate or may generate income. Recoverable values set by the property valuators reflect the value of
the assets on the day of assessment and the market conditions as at that date. In case these conditions change, recoverable value of assets might also change.
On 31 December 2016 a part of buildings with residual value of 5 107 911 euro was pledged to the Šiaulių Bankas as collateral for the loan (Note 20).
During 2016 cost of writen-off tangible assets was 85 102 euro (accumulated depreciation - 74 352 euro).
The Company's management performed the Company's non-current tangible and intangible assets impairment tests in accordance with prepared operating
forecasts and calculated weighted average cost of capital and found that assets recoverable value (on 31 December 2016) is close to carrying value of the
respective assets. Recoverable value was established by discounted cash flow method, assessing the present value of expected 10-year future cash flows by
applying 11 percent discount rate (post-tax). The Company's Management has approved the financial performance forecast for period 2017 - 2021. When
performing the Company's non-current tangible and intangible assets impairment test, the forecasted average annual revenue growth for 2017-2021 is 5
percent. For the forecast from 2022 to 2026 2 percent income growth rate is applied. For assessment of terminal value 1 percent growth rate is used. The
future postman project (Note 26) impact on the operating exepsnes of 2017-2012 is the descrease of 6,5 million euro. The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity analysis for the change of discount rate on 31 December 2016:
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9

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Discount rate
Increase by Decrease by 1
2,5 percent
percent

Sensitivity level
Influence on the value of the cashgenerating unit, thousand euro, for 31
December 2016

( 6 088)

3 353

The part of the Company's non-current tangible assets with an acquisition value of 31 December 2016 equal to 2 269 369 euro, was fully depreciated (2 205
047 euro on 31 December 2015), but is still in use:

31 December 31 December
2016
2015
Buildings and structures

157 821

269 669

Machinery and equipment
Vehicles

793 736
830 181

813 940
647 736

Other equipment, devices, tools and fixtures

170 740

148 365

316 891
2 269 369

325 337
2 205 047

Other property, plant and equipment

10 Investment property
Buildings
Year ended on 31 December 2015
Net book value as at 1 January 2015
Reclassification to property, plant and equipment
Reclassification from assets held for sale
Depreciation
Net book value on 31 December 2015

5 443 327
( 271 871)
(2 235 729)
( 68 745)
2 866 982

As at 31 December 2015
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value on 31 December 2015

3 639 330
( 772 348)
2 866 982

Year ended on 31 December 2016
Net book value on 1 January 2016
Reclassification to property, plant and equipment
Reclassification to assets held for sale
Depreciation
Net book value on 31 December 2016

2 866 982
( 301 507)
( 490 734)
( 42 043)
2 032 698

As at 31 December 2016
Acquisition value
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value on 31 December 2016

2 937 634
( 904 936)
2 032 698
2 032 698

Investment property comprises a part of office buildings rented out to legal and natural persons. Also, it includes the property which is not used in the
operation, but from which increase of value from sale is expected. Expenses related to investment property consisting of depreciation expenses, are accounted
in the comprehensive income statement under the item of non-current assets depreciation and amortization expenses, i.e. 42 043 euro (68 745 euro in 2015).
On 31 December 2016, part of investment property with a net book value 113 470 euros was pledged to the Šiaulių Bankas as loan collateral (Note 20).
Average price per square meter of the part of investment property, which are held for sale, is 78 euro/m2.
According to the Management, on 31 December 2015 and 2016 the fair value investment property doesn't significantly differ from its carrying value and in
accordance with the fair value hierarchy defined in the Note 2.10 is assigned to the 3rd level of the fair value hierarchy.
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11 Non-current financial assets
As at 31
December
2016
Investments in subsidiaries
Loans to subsidiaries

3 467 687
10 561 072

As at 31
December
2015
(adjusted)
3 467 687
8 272 072

Non-current receivables

344 343
14 373 102
(8 274 065)
(95 772)
6 003 265
6 003 265

721 468
12 461 227
(9 178 575)
(96 572)
3 186 080
3 186 080

-Impairment of loans granted and investments in subsidiary
- Impairment of non-current receivables

The Company's Management performed a retrospective valuation of recoverable value of investments and loan granted to UAB Baltic Post (31 December
2015). Results of the investments valuation were accounted by the Company for as correction of financial statements of 2015 (Note 3).
UAB Newsec Valuations which performed valuation of the recoverable value of investment and loan granted to UAB Baltic Post established that the recoverable
value of UAB Baltic Post cash-generating unit as at 31 December 2015 is 1 753 320 euro. Recoverable value was calculated using value-in-use method. The
discount rate applied for valuation was 47,25 percent (post-tax). Valuators also provided the opinion on UAB Baltic Post value as at 31 December 2016. UAB
Baltic Post business value as at 31 December 2016 was 3 797 830 euro. In 31 December 2016 valuation the discount rate of 14,18 percent was applied (after
assessment of taxes). In 2016 the Company reversed part of impairment of the investments to the subsidiary UAB Baltic Post for the amount of 904 510 euro.
Decrease in the discount rate and increase of recoverable value in 2016 is related to improved UAB Baltic Post results of 2016.
The Management of UAB Baltic Post has approved the 5-year forecast of financial performace from 2017 to 2012. Growth rate of 5-5,5 procent is applied for
the forecast period from 2022 till 2025. The following table shows the sensitivity analysis in case of change of discount rate for 31 December 2016:
Discount rate
Increase by 5 Decrease by 1
percent
percent

Sensitivity level
Influence on the value of the cashgenerating unit, thousand euro, for 31
December 2016

(1 308)

529

During 2016, the Company granted loans with fixed interest rates for the subsidiaries UAB Baltic Post - 1 140 000 euro, UAB LP Mokėjimų Sprendimai - 1 149
000 euro. The Company in 2016 recovered 571 316 euro loan from unrelated companies.
On the date of 31 December 2016 interest rate of outstanding loans is fixed (3.5%). No delays in repayment of loans observed.
12 Assets held for sale

Year ended on 31 December 2015
Net book value of 1 January 2015
Reclassification from property, plant and equipment
Reclassification to investment property
Disposals
Impairment
Net book value on 31 December 2015 m

1 194 678
238 349
2 235 729
(2 046 171)
( 146 187)
1 476 398
1 476 398

Year ended on 31 December 2016
Net book value of 1 January 2016
Reclassification from property, plant and equipment
Reclassifications to / from investment property
Disposals
Impairment
Net book value of 31 December 2016

1 476 398
79 152
490 734
( 944 432)
( 73 183)
1 028 669
1 028 669
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12 Assets held for sale (continued)
In 2012-2016, the Management of public limited company Lietuvos Paštas approved by its resolutions the lists of real estate (buildings) which are held for sale.
Active sale of non-current assets held for sale, which are not used in the Company's activities and approved by the Management, was started and it is expected
to realise them during 2017. The Company has reclassified these assets from non-current tangible assets to assets held for sale caption. In 2016 the Company
has reclassified assets from non-current tangible assets to assets held for sale caption for 79 900 euro (impairment of 748 euro). Similarly, the Company has
reclassified from investment property to assets held for sale caption an amount of 1 053 261 euro (impairment of 93 692 euro). In 2016 the part of the assets
with the value of 586 644 euro (impairment of 117 809 euro) and which were not sold during 2016, and which are not expected to be sold in 2017, were
reclassified to investment property caption. The Company accounted assets held for sale at the lower value of carrying value and fair value less estimated sale
costs. The fair value of the assets held for sale was assessed on the basis of valuation performed by independent assessors.
Assets held for sale consist of buildings and structures. Impairment related to assets which are held for sale, is included in other costs in the comprehensive
income statement. According to the Management, the fair value of the assets held for sale doesn't significantly differ from its carrying value and according to
the hierarchy defined in the Note 2.10 is assigned the 3rd level of hierarchy level of the fair value (in 2015, all assets accounted under investment property
caption were assigned to 3rd fair value level).
The Company's Management determines the policy and procedures of establishment of fair value. External valuators are appointed for assessment of
significant assets. External valuators are used to value the fair value when there are changes in the real estate market. The valuators selection criteria include
knowledge, reputation, independence and compliance with professional standarts. After consulation with the Company's external valuators, the Management
decides on which assessment methods and data can be used in each case. The Management analyzes the movement of assets value. For this analysis the
Management checks the key data used in the last valuation, comparing information in valuation calculation with agreements and other relevant data. In order
to determine whether the changes in fair value are justified, the Management with external valuators compare these changes to the relevant external
information. In order to properly disclose the fair value, the Company determined assets classes in accordance with assets nature, characteristics, risk and the
fair value hierarchy level.
For assets which is periodically recognized at fair value in the financial statements, the Group determines whether the transfers were performed between the
fair value hierarchy levels (Note 2.10) by re-evaluating the classification at the end of each accounting period (on the basis of lowest-level data which is
significant for establishment of fair value as a whole).
According to market comparable method, the assets fair value is determied on the basis of the comparable transactions. Market comparable method is based
on the substitution principle, according to which the potential buyer will not pay more than the replacement costs of the asset. The Company's applied
comparative unit is the price per square meter (m2). The average price of the Company's assets held for sale per square meter is 163 Euro/m2.
According to the management, value of the assets held for sale didn't significantly change in 2015-2016.

13 Inventories

31 December 31 December
2016
2015
Consumables and raw materials
Philately production
Goods for resale
Less: net realisable value allowance

32 279
90 447

(adjusted)
74 067
78 807

2 985 805

1 885 992

3 108 531

2 038 866

(30 779)

(23 677)

3 077 752

2 015 189

3077752
The acquisition cost of the Company's inventories accounted for at net realization value as at 31 December 2016 was 30 779 euro (23 677 euro for 31
December 2015). Change of inventories impairment of 2016 and 2015 in the Company's comprehensive income statement is included in other expenses
caption.
Cost of written-off inventories and sold goods, accounted in the statement of comprehensive income for 2016, is 4 974 166 euro (4 219 625 euro in 2015).
In 2016, the Group had inventories held on consignment basis for the amount of 2 630 640 euro (2 586 183 euro in 2015), these inventories were not
accounted in the statement of financial position.
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14 Trade receivables
31 December 31 December
2016
2015

Trade receivables, gross
Less: allowance for doubtful trade receivables

7 273 384

8 068 781

(1 607 723)
5 665 661
5 665 661

(1 361 517)
6 707 264

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally collectible on 30 days terms.
Movement in the allowance for impairment of the Company’s receivables were as follows:
Balance as at 31 December 2015
Impairment charged for the year

1 361 517
246 206

Balance as at 31 December 2016

1 607 723

In 2016 written-off receivables amounted to EUR 83 773.
Change in collectively evaluated allowance for doubtful trade receivables for the years 2016 and 2015 is included into other expenses in the statement of
comprehensive income.
Trade and other receivables are written-off, when the Management is 100 percent sure that the amounts are not collectible.
Trade receivables ageing analysis for 31 December 2016 and 2015 (less the impairment):

Trade receivables neither
past due nor impaired

Trade receivables past due but not impaired

Up to 30 days 30 – 60 days

31 December 2015
31 December 2016

5 566 473
5 201 120

1 045 737
298 681

39 682
61 047

60 – 90 days 90 – 180 days

9 900
22 885

45 472
81 928

Total

6 707 264
5 665 661

Quality of financial assets which are not past due and their impairment is not accounted
There are no signs that the receivables on the date of preparation of the financial statements, which are not covered and their value is not reduced, will not be
recovered.
15 Prepayments, deferred expenses and accrued income
As at 31
December
2016
Accrued income for international settlements
Deferred expenses
Prepayments
Advance payment of income tax
Other accrued income

(a)
(b)

11 482 195
115 119
4 090 499
54 880
15 742 693
15 742 693

As at 31
December
2015
9 166 216
81 004
2 533 299
45 983
11 826 502

a) Under the accrued income for international settlements caption the Company accounts services provided to foreign post offices (designated operators)
which are finally reconciled, and the invoices are usually issued subsequently after the date of the statement of financial position.
b) Foreign posts (designated operators) creditors, on the basis of the Universal Postal Union Convention and the provisions of its regulations, can require
prepayments related to internation postal services. On 31 December 2016 such prepayments were 3 654 600 euro (On 31 December 2015 is 2 122 142 euro).
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16 Other receivables
As at 31
December
2016
Receivable for compensation of services of delivery of periodicals to subscribers in
(a)
rural residential areas
Other receivables
(b)

As at 31
December
2015

3 704 424

2 465 315

82 229
3 786 653
3 786 653

619 730
3 085 045

a) During 2016, the Company incurred 6 341 080 euro loss by providing services of periodicals delivery to subscribers in rural residential areas. According to the
procedure of coverage of losses of periodicals delivery to rural residentials areas subscribers services established by the Government, during 2016 the Group
was compensated for the losses for the second half of 2015 with the amount of 2 400 000 euro and for the first half of 2016 with the amount of 2 701 971 euro
(in 2015 8 417 107 euro was compensated).
b) Other receivables decrease in 2016 is related to the recovered value added tax.
17 Cash and cash equivalents
As at 31
December
2016
Cash at bank
Cash on hand
Cash in transit

As at 31
December
2015

806 672

180 661

1 839 201
2 036 359
4 682 231
4 682 231

1 622 996
1 245 701
3 049 358

18 Share capital
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015 the state owns 113 074 410 ordinary shares with the par value of EUR 0,29 each (on the date of 31 December 2015 0,29
euro). On the date of 31 December 2016 and on the date of 31 December 2015 all shares were fully paid. According to the Law on Companies of the Republic of
Lithuania, the company's total equity cannot be less than ½ of its share capital specified in the company's articles of association. On the date of 31 December
2016 and 2015 the Company was in compliance with this requirement.

Weighted average calculation 2015

Number of
shares

Nominal
value

Turnover/
365 (in days)

Number of shares as at 31 December 2014

113 074 410

0.29

365/365

113 074 410

Number of shares as at 31 December 2015

113 074 410

0.29

365/365

113 074 410

Weighted average calculation 2016

Number of
shares

Nominal
value

Turnover /
365 (in days)

Number of shares as at 31 December 2015

113 074 410

0.29

365/365

113 074 410

Number of shares as at 31 December 2016

113 074 410

0.29

365/365

113 074 410

2016
Dividends distributed for the Company's shareholders
Average weighted number of shares issued (unit)
Dividends per share (EUR)

692 298
113 074 410
0,006
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19 Reserves
Legal reserve

A legal reserve is a compulsory reserve under Lithuanian legislation. Annual transfers of not less than 5 % of distributed retained earnings calculated for
statutory reporting purposes are required until the reserve reaches 10 % of the share capital. In 2016, the Company distributed retained earnings of 2015,
transferred 129 806 euro to legal reserve. As at 31 December 2016 the Company was profitable, therefore, when distributing retained earnings of 2016, 5
percent of net reference period income will be transferred to legal reserve.
Since the Company has accumulated undistributed losses, the Company's general meeting of shareholders in accordance with the Law on Companies of the
Republic of Lithuania must adopt a decision to cover these losses to the distributable profit (loss), transferring the amounts in the following sequence:
1) from reserves, not used during the reported financial year;
2) from legal reserve.

Other reserves
In 2016 the Company, when distributing undistributed profit of 2015, transferred 43 268 euro to other reserves (19 915 euro is the part of income dedicated to
the benefits to Board members and bonuses for employees, 23 353 euros is the part of income dedicated to social and cultural needs). During 2016 18 638 euro
was used from the reserve dedicated to the benefits to Board members and bonuses for employees, 22 249 euro was used from the reserve dedicated for
social and cultural needs.
20 Financial borrowings

31 December 31 December
2016
2015
Non-current borrowing
Loans from banks
Current borrowings
Loans from bank
Total financial borrowings

5 062 411
5 062 411

11 671 699
11 671 699

5 423 346
5 423 346
10 485 757
10485757

11 671 699

Terms of repayment of non-current financial borrowings are as follows:
31 December 31 December
2016
2015
Within one year
From one to five years
After five years

5 062 411
5 062 411

8 649 182
3 022 517
11 671 699

Interest rate of outstanding loans as at 31 December 2016: 3 month EURIBOR + 2,8 percent, 3 month EURIBOR + 0,72 percent. Interest rate of outstanding
loans as at 31 December 2015: 3 month EURIBOR + 2,8 percent, 3 month EURIBOR + 0,72 percent. The part of the Company's non-current tangible assets and
investment property is pledged to AB Šiaulių Bankas as a collateral for a loan (Note 8 and 9).
Non-current liabilities with Danske bank of 5 426 346 euro were reclassified to current liabilities due to breach of loan covenants. On 7 April 2017 the Company
has signed an amendment to the loan contract with Danske Bank, according which the financial covenants were changed.
On 31 December 2016 the amount of undrawn credit lines and balances surpluses were 10 306 644 euro (on 31 December 2015 - 12 120 702 euro).
All loans are denominated in euro, therefore there is no currency exchange rate fluctuation risk.
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21 Operating lease and loan-for-use
On 31 December 2016 the Company concluded 318 lease contracts under which it leased 19 247 square meters of buildings and structures. There are 59 openended contracts and 81 contracts due to expire in 2016, but these contracts are exected to be extended. The average rental income per month is 51 123 euro.
In 2016, the Company received 637 914 euro of rental income, and in 2015 - 595 416 euro.
Minimum rental income from irrevocable lease contracts consist of:

31 December 31 December
2016
2015

Within one year
From one to five years

570 888
944 765
874 398
2 390 051

After five years

619 345
929 896
825 197
2 374 438

As at 31 December 2016 the Company had 255 signed lease agreements under which is rents 24 879 square meters of of premises. Of these contracts 68 are
open-ended contracts, while other are fixed-term contracts and their expiry date, if necessary and by the agreement of the parties, will be extended. The
average rental expenses per month are 180 496 euro. In 2016, the Company incurred 2 165 952 euro rental exepsnes, and in 2015 - 2 040 137 euro.
Minimum future payments under concluded operating lease contracts are as follows:

31 December 31 December
2016
2015

Within one year
From one to five years

1 562 815
3 955 545
6 753 399
12 271 759

After five years

2 083 644
4 336 542
7 520 432
13 940 618

The Company is leasing land from the Republic of Lithuania with rent term of 5 - 99 years. The annual rent fee for 2016 consists of about 55 thousand euro.
The Company has entered into 3 loan-for-use agreements with loan-for-use recipients. Based on these agreements, the Company rents 116,80 square meters
of premises. The net book value of the assets rented as loan-for-use amounted to EUR 29 246 as at 31 December 2016. Loan-for-use agreements are fixedterm (ending 2016-2020).
The Company concluded 42 lon-for-use contracts with lenders. Bsed on these contracts the Company leases 1 692 square meters of premises. Under openended contracts the Company leases 938 square meters of premises, other contracts are of fixed-terms (until 2016-2025).
There are no restrictions for Company's activity related to dividends, additional borrowings or additioal non-current lease stated in the terms of the operating
lease contracts.
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22 Non-current employee benefits

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015 he Company accounted for non-current employee benefits for employees leaving the Company at the age of retirement.
Related expenses are included into other expenses caption in the Company’s statement of comprehensive income.
The change in the non-current employee benefits is provided below:
Balance as at 31 December 2015

788 202

Change

11 897

Balance as at 31 December 2016

800 099

Main assumptions applied while evaluating non-current employee benefits are as follows:

31 December 31 December
2016
2015
Discount rate
Employee turnover rate
Anticipated annual salary increase

0,79 proc.
22,49 proc.
3 proc.

1,63 proc.
16,24 proc.
3 proc.

Sensitivity analysis of the key assumptions as at 31 December 2016 is provided below:

Assumptions
Sensitivity level
Effect on non-current
employee benefits
liabilities - increase /
(decrease)

Expected average annual
wage increase

Discount rate

Employee turnover rate

Increase by Decrease by 0,5 Increase by 1 Decrease by 1 Increase by 1 Decrease by 1
0,5 percent
percent
percent
percent
percent
percent

(6 192)

6 473

12 816

(11 985)

(15 758)

17 226

23 Grants and subsidies
Gross value as at 31 December 2015

15 184

Received grant

-

Written-off grant
Gross value as at 31 December 2016

15 184

Accumulated amortization as at 31 December 2015

( 1 857)

Charge for the year

(1 810)

Amortisation assets that is written-off

-

Accumulated amortization as at 31 December 2016

( 3 667)

Net book value as at 31 December 2015

13 327

Net book value as at 31 December 2016

11 517
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24 Income tax
2016
Components of the income tax (expenses):
Current income tax (expenses) for the reporting year
Prior year income tax corrections
Deferred income tax (expenses)
Income tax (expenses) recorded in the statement of comprehensive income

2015
(adjusted)
(102 814)
(6 262)
616 703
507 627

(110 695)
16 503
52 171
( 42 021)
-42021
The reported amount of income tax (expenses) gain in the statement of comprehensive income, which is attributable to the year's operating result, can be
reconciled to the amount of income tax (expenses) calculated using 15 percent profit tax rate provided in the law applied on profit before tax for the year 2016
and 2015:
2016
Income tax, accounted for at the statutory rate of 15 percent
Permanent differences
Prior year income tax adjustments
Removal of temporary differences
Income tax (expenses)

( 155 197)
96 931
16 503
( 258)
( 42 021)

2015
(adjusted)
1 679 294
( 25 688)
( 6 262)
(1 139 717)
507 627

31 December 31 December
2016
2015
Components of deferred income tax asset:
Tax losses
Accrued expenses
Impairment
Deferred income tax asset before valuation allowancee
Less: valuation allowance
Deferred income tax assets, net

970 382
628 893
98 221
1 697 496
1 697 496

Components of deferred income tax liability:
Property, plant and equipment
Accrued income
Deferred income tax liability
Deferred income tax, in net value

(1 561 306)
(1 561 306)
136 190
#REF!

(adjusted)
1 227 224
441 002
60 225
1 728 451
1 728 451

(1 644 432)
(1 644 432)
84 019

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities on 31 December 2016 and 2015 were accounted for using the rate of 15 percent,
Deferred income tax assets in the Company's financial position statement are offset with the deferred tax liability, because they are both related to the same
tax authority.
25 Advances received, accrued expenses
As at 31
December
2016
Advances received
International settlement accrued expenses
Vacation pay accrual
Accrued variable wage expenses
Other

(a)
(b)

9 815 690
11 354 154
2 477 460
434 290
294 668
24 376 262
24 376 262

As at 31
December 201
7 038 570
11 427 619
2 151 813
388 338
160 118
21 166 458

a) Advances received mainly include prepayments for subscriptions and prepayments received from foreign post offices (designated operators).
b) International settlement accrued expenses consist of services received from foreign post offices (designated operators) which will be fully agreed, and the
invoices will be received only next year after the date of financial position report.
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26 Other amounts payable
As at 31
December
2016
Payroll related liabilities
Restructuring provision
Taxes (other than profit tax)
Other
Other payable amounts

As at 31
December
2015

(1 669)
( 379)
915 060
367 359
356 256
1 293
40 599
1 282 043
396 476
1 282 043
396 476
a) In 2016, the Company's Management approved future postman project. In 2016, the Company accounted for 915 060 euro provision for coverage of
liabilities of this project within 2017. Provision amount is calculated in accordance with future postman project implementation plan, on which the parties
concerned were notified during 2016.
(a)

27 Financial risk management
Credit risk
The Company’s management considers that its maximum credit risk exposure is reflected by the amount of trade and other receivables, cash and short-term
investments, net of allowance for doubtful accounts recognised at the date of the statement of financial position. The Company has no significant credit risk
concentration. Credit risk is managed through regular monitoring procedures (supervision of individual creditors, especially supervision and analysis of the
largest customers in order to anticipate potential future solvency problems, etc.) and the use of credit conditions. Monthly assessment of individual users and
groups are performed in accordance with the Company's procedures in order to take decision due to accounting of allowance for receivables.
Interest rate risk
The Company's revenues and cash flows from operating activities are essentially independent from changes in market interest rates. The Company has no
significant interest-earning assets.
The Company's financial debts consist of loans with floating interest rate which is related to EURIBOR and creates interest rate risk. On 31 December 2015 and
in 2016 the Company hasn't concluded any interest rate risk mitigating transactions and didn't have any instruments managing interest rate risk.
The following table demonstrates sensitivity of the Company's profit before tax for possible interest rate changes, holding all other variables constant. There is
no risk on the Company's equity, other than on current year profit impact.
Increase/decr
ease in
percentage
points

Impact on
profit before
tax

2015
Euro

+0,5

(58 358)

Euro

-0,02

2 334

Euro

+0,5

(52 429)

Euro

-0,02

2 097

2016

Foreign currency exchange risk
Major currency risk faced by the Company arises due to the fact that the Company carries out postal operations internationally. Monetary unit which is defined
in the Universal Postal Convention and is largely used for assessment of provided and received international postal services - is Special Drawing Right (XDR), but
the settlement of international postal companies the Company mainly performs in euro. The Company's policy is to match cash flows from highly probable
future sales with purchases in each foreign currency. The Company does not use any financial instruments to manage foreign currency risk. On 31 December
2015 and in 2016 the monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in various currencies were as follows:
31 December 2016
Assets
Liabilities
28 343 387
38 998 318
18 814 697
29 705 839
628
9 528 062
9 292 059
420
28 343 387
38 998 318

In euro (EUR)
In USA dollars (USD)
By Special Drawing Rights (XDR)
In Swiss franc (CHF)
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31 December 2015
Assets
19 358 642
1 682 251
8 328 967
29 369 860

Liabilities
(adjusted)
26 092 600
8 438 294
9 286
34 540 180
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27 Financial risk management (continued)
The following table demonstrates sensitivity of the Company's profit before tax for possible exchange rate changes, holding all other variables as constant (with
respect to changes of fair values of monetary assets and liabilities).
Exchange rate
Effect on
increase /
profit before
decrease
tax
2015
XDR
USD
CHF

+ 10%
+ 10%
+ 10%

(10 933)
168 225
( 929)

XDR
USD
CHF

- 10%
- 10%
- 10%

10 933
(168 225)
929

2016
XDR
USD
CHF

+ 10%
+ 10%
+ 10%

(23 600)
( 63)
42

XDR
USD
CHF

- 10%
- 10%
- 10%

23 600
63
( 42)

Liquidity risk
The Company's policy is to maintain sufficient amount of cash and cash equivalents or ensure funding with the assistance of relevant amount credit lines, in
order to implement the provisions in its strategic plans. The indicators of the Company's liquidity (total current assets / total current liabilities) and quick ratio
((total current assets - inventories) / total current liabilities) on 31 December 2016 were respectively 0,78 and 0,71 (0,97 and 0,9 on 31 December 2015).
On 31 December 2016 the Company's current liabilities exceed current assets by 9 416 thousand euro. Non-current liabilities in amount of 5 426 thousand euro
of Danske Bank borrowings were reclassified in the 2016 financial statements to short-term liabilities (Note 20) due to breach of loan covenants. On 7 April
2017 the Company has signed an amendment of the contract with Danske Bank, according which the Company is in compliance with financial covenants,
therefore it can be assessed that current liabilities exceed current assets by 3 991 thousand euro. In 2017, it is planned that the Company's EBITDA (profit
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization) will be 2,4 million euro. In 2017, the Company will seek to sell non-current tangible assets not used in the
operation. It is planned that in 2017 the Company's CAPEX (capital expenditure) will be approx. 2,7 million euro. Part of the capital expenditure will be financed
by the unused credit lines which on 31 December 2016 amounted to 10 306 644 euro (Note 20). In assessing all current and planned actions to be executed as
well as the fact that the Company is the only in the country which provides universal postal services on behalf of the state, the Company's Management doesn't
see any going concern risk.

The following table summarizes the Company's financial liabilities repayment terms in 2016 and on 31 December 2015 according to undiscounted payments.

On demand

Less than 3
months

3 to 12
months

1 to 5
years

More than 5
years

Total

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

-

36 626

110 682

12 179 545

-

12 326 853

Trade and other payables
Balance as at 31 December 2015 (adjusted)

-

6 927 375
6 964 001

11 427 619
11 538 301

12 179 545

-

18 354 994
30 681 847

5 423 346

44 580

136 216

5 612 603

-

11 216 745

-

11 859 624

11 354 154

-

-

23 213 778

-

11 904 204

11 490 370

5 612 603

-

29 007 177

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Balance as at 31 December 2016 (adjusted)
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27 Financial risk management (continued)
Fair value of financial instruments
The Company’s principal financial instruments not carried at fair value are trade and other receivables, trade and other payables, non-current and current
borrowings.
The carrying amount of the financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company as of 31 December 2016 and 2015 approximates their fair value.
The fair value of loans, other financial liabilities and other financial assets was calculated using market interest rate.
For assessment of each class of financial assets and liabilities following methods and assumptions are used:
(a) Carrying value of current trade and other receivables, current trade and other debts and current debts approximates their real value due to their short
maturity (according to fair value hierarchy defined in Note 2.10 it is assigned to the 3rd level of fair value hierarchy).
(b) Fair value of non-current borrowings is established in accordance with same or similar loan market price or interest rate which is applied at the time for the
borrowins of same maturity. The fair value of non-current borrowings for which variable interest is paid approximates their carrying value (according to fair
value hierarchy defined in Note 2.10 it is assigned to the 3rd level of fair value hierarchy).
28 Capital management
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that the Company comply with externally imposed capital requirements and that the
Company maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support the business and to maximise shareholders’ value (capital in the meaning of IAS 1 comprises equity
presented in the financial statements).
The Company manages its capital structure and makes its adjustments taking into account changes in economic conditions and operating risk nature. In order
to maintain or adjust capital structure the Company can repay capital to shareholders or issue new shares. There were no significant changes related to capital
management objectives, principles or processes during accounting year ended as at 31 December 2016 and 2015. Holders of shares belonging to the state
under property right must ensure that in public companies, which have shares belonging to the state under property right, providing more than half of all votes,
the profit part held for payment of dividents for accounting year would be not less than 80 percent of the distributable profit.
The Company monitors capital using equity to debt ratio. The capital consists of ordinary shares, reserves, undistributed profit.
31 December 31 December
2016
2015
(adjusted)
Non-current liabilities (including deferred tax and grants)

5 413 728

12 087 212

Current liabilities
Total liabilities

43 400 281
48 814 008

28 890 866
40 978 078

Equity

23 094 799

22 835 361

2,11

1,79

Equity to debt ratio

Equity size calculations and application rules of the Company as a electronic money institution are determined by the Supervisory Authority (Bank of
Lithuania).
The electronic money institution's minimum equity consists of:
- authorized capital (reduced value of bought-up own shares) without the value of preference shares with cumulative divident;
- reserve capital (stock reserve);
- capital reserve (emission difference);
- retained earnings or deficit;
- legal reserve or reserve capital;
- other reserves.
Minimal equity required by the Law on Electronic money Institutions of the Republic of Lithuania of Public Company Lietuvos Paštas shall be not less than 350
thousand euros.
The electronic money institution's equity shall not be less than the greater of following amounts:
- minimal equity;
- equity requirement calculated by one of the legislation methods (A, B, C, D methods) adopted by the supervising authority.
Minimal equity requirements:
Minimum equity requirement (thousand euro)
Minimum equity amount (thousand euro)

350
22 102
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28 Capital management (continued)
Equity requirement calculation (method B):
Monthly average of payment services turnover (MATPS) (thousand euro)
Recalculated amount of MATPS (thousand euro):

67 218
897

4 percent of MATPS up to 5 million euros (thousand euro)

200

2,5 percent of MATPS from 5 million to 10 million euros (thousand euro)

125

1 percent of MATPS from 10 million to 100 million euros (thousand euro)

572

0,5 percent of MATPS from 100 million to 250 million euros (thousand euro)

-

0,25 percent of MATPS over 250 million euros (thousand euro)

-

Equity requirement (greater than the minimal equity requirement and calculated equity
requirement) (thousand euros)

897

Calculation of the equity requirement (method D):
Average of outstanding electronic money*

142

Equity requirement calculated by method D (2 percent from the average of
outstanding electronic money)

3

Equity requirement calculated by methods D+B

900

EQUITY REQUIREMENT

900

Calculation of the Company's equity as of an electronic money institution (Level I):
Authorized capital excluding preference shares (thousand euro)

32 792

Reserve capital (stock reserve) (thousand euro)

-

Capital reserve (emission difference) without the amount related to preference shares issue
(thousand euro)

-

Part of previous year's retained earnings which is not held to be paid by dividends or previous
year's loss (thousand euro)

(11 553)

Current year's profit and (or) previous year's retained earnings distribution of which has not been
decided by the general meeting of shareholders (thousand euro)

-

Funds for coverage of general risk of electronic money institution

-

Preference shares without cumulative dividend and non-equity securities (thousand euro)
Legal reserve or reserve capital (thousand euro)
Bought-up own shares (nominal value) (thousand euro) (-)

861
-

Intangible assets (net value) (thousand euro) (-)

2 882

Current year losses (thousand euro) (-)
Calculated Level I equity capital of electronic money institution (thousand euro)

19 218

Calculation of the Company's equity as of an electronic money institution (Level II):
Other general purpose reserves

2

Long-term assets revaluation reserves

-

Financial assets revaluation reserves

-

Special undistributed reserve

-

Non-equity securities

-

Subordinated loans

-

Calculated Level II equity capital of electronic money institution (thousand euro)

2

CALCULATED EQUITY CAPITAL OF ELECTRONIC MONEY INSTITUTION

19 220

Equity capital surplus (thousand euro)

18 320
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29 Commitments and contingencies
The Company has issued guarantees and sureties to the banks for delivery of pension and other benefits. Signed guarantees of social benefits (pensions and
allowances) delivery contracts implementation on 31 December 2016 amounted to 2 218 789 euro (in 2015 - 3 490 499 euro).
Competition Authority of the Republic of Lithuania in 2016 started the investigation on compliance of actions of the Public Company Lietuvos Paštas with the
requirements provided in Art. 7 of the Law on Competition of the Republic of Lithuania. According to the Company's Management, it is too early to assess the
cosequences of such investigation for the Company's financial statements, because no results of this investigation are received. In case, if allegations of the
Competition Council will be confirmed, the Company may be imposed a fine of up to 10 percent of gross annual income during the last financial year.

30 Related party transactions
Remuneration for the Company's management
In 2016, the total amount of the wage paid to the Company's Management (7 managers) was 328 639 euro (in 2015 - 271 492 euro for 7 managers). The
Company's Management was not provided any significant loans, guarantees, there were no other paid or accued amounts or property transfer.
Transactions with other related parties
The parties are considered related when one party has the possibility to control the other one or have significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Related parties of the Public Company Lietuvos Paštas are public companies whose owner's rights and obligations are
implemented by the Ministry of Transport of the Republic of Lithuania (official list is published on the website www.transp.lt) and the subsidiaries UAB Lietuvos
Pašto Finansinės Paslaugos (Financial Services of Lithuanian Post), UAB Baltic Post, UAB LP Mokėjimų Sprendimai (LP Payment Solutions).
On 31 December 2016 the Company granted 8 610 000 euro loan to the subsidiary UAB Baltic Post and 1 951 072 euro loan to LP Mokėjimų Sprendimai (Note
11). Outstanding loans annual interest rate is fixed with 3,5 percent. There are no past-due repayments of the loans.
The Company's transactions with related parties in 2015 and 2016 and corresponding balances of receivables/payables on 31 December 2015 and 2016 are as
follows:
Purchase of
goods and
services
UAB Lietuvos Pašto Finansinės Paslaugos
UAB Baltic Post
UAB LP Mokėjimų Sprendimai (LP Payment
Solutions)

Sale of goods
and services

The amount
payable to
related
parties

Receivables
from related
parties

2015
2016
2015
2016

345 383
475 044

471 117
652
825 507
825 344

101 668
151 828

60 493
7 601 792
8 750 065

2015

-

23 988

-

822 638

2016

-

61 604

-

2 013 117

The Company doesn't consider the companies controlled by the Ministry of Transport of the Republic of Lithuania as a single client, because there is no
significant economic integration between these companies. Transations pricing is based on the approved tariffs, and transactions with such companies are not
significant both individually and as a whole.
Transactions with related parties include usual sale and purchase of goods and services related to the activities.
The Company has granted 30 396 euro guarantees or sureties to related parties. On 31 December 2015 and 2016 the value of receivables from related paries
was not reduced, except for impairment which is presented in Note 11. The amount of 24 077 euro received in 2015 from UAB Baltic Post is up to 30 days past
due, however impairment is not accounted for it, in 2016, there are overdue amounts from relaetd parties.
31 Subsequent events
On 7 April 2017 the Company has signed an amendment to the contract with Danske Bank in which loan financial covenants were changed.
As at date when management authorised these financial statements the Company still has not prepared project for profit distribution.
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